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Report and Accounits 2011
Directors’ Report

The drectors submit ther annual report together with the audied financial statements of Legal 8. General Assurance Society
umited {'the Company') for the year ended 31 December 2011

Pnncipal activihies

The Company 15 a composie nsurance company authorsed in the UK whose ulhmate controling party 1s Legal & General
Group Plc The prncipal activity of the Company 15 Iife and pensions business It has a number of operaling subsichanes, the
prncipal activiies of the Company’s main subsidiones during the year were msurance and remnsurance A list of the principal
operahng subsidianes appears in note 34 The Company's registered office s at One Coleman Street, London ECZR 5AA 1tis
registered in England and Wales under company registration number 001466055

Signrficant events during the year
Review of business and future outioock

The Company forms a matenal part of the acimvities of Legal & General Group Pl (Group') and on this basis the review of
business that 15 presented within Group's financial statements 1s not duplcated here This informaton can be found within the
Drreclors’ Report included within the Group's financial statements The 2012 economic chimate remains uncertan but the
directors are confident that the Company 1s well posioned to exploit opportunihes throughout the curent economic cycle

Durng the year, the drectors elected to prepare financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Stondards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union The date of fransition for the Company 1s 1 January 2010 The mpact of first
hme adoption of IFRS 1s disclosed within Note 43 of the financial statements

Principal risks and uncertainties may be categorised as follows

» Legisiation and Regulation

« Financial Market and Economic Conditions

+ Counterparty and Third Party Risks

« UK Financial Services Sector contagion risks

* Mortality catastrophe and other assumption uncertainties
» Industry Change

A detalled review of the Company's inherent exposures to market credit, insurance, iquidity and operational nsks together with
the framework for ther management and control is set out In note 42 of the financial statemenis The prncipal nsks and
uncertaintes facing the Company are

1) tegisiation and Regulalion

The markets in which the Company operates are highly regulated, with regulation defining the overall framewaork for the design
marketing and distnbution of products the acceptance and adminisiration of busingss, and the prudential capital that
regulated companies should hold Government fiscal policy may ailso influence the design of products, the retention of existing
business and the required reserves for future llabilthes

The Company bases its business strategy upon prevailing regulation and legisiahion, and known/anticipated chonge and
engages with regulatory and legislative authorties where appropnate to assist in the evaluation of change on the sector and its
stakeholders

2) Financial Market and Economic Conditions

The Company holds a broad range of investment assets to meet the obligations ansing from wnting insurance business The
performance and hquidity of investment markets interest rate movements and inflahion can mpact the value of these assets as
well as the value of the underlying obligations A potential mismatch of assets and labites may impact the eamings profitability
ang the capital requirements of the Company Significant falls in investment asset values can also impact fee nmcome from
Invesiment management activities whilst broader economic conditions can influence the purchase of refal financial services
products and the period over which the business s retained

The Company seeks to match asset and kability cash flows o reduce the impact of changing economic conditions Addihonally
a range of sk management strategies are used to manage velafility in returns from the investment of assets and the broader
effects of adverse market conditons The effect of market and economic condiiens upon fee Income and the timing of the
purchase and retenton of retail invesiment products are mitigated through the utisation of a low cost scalable business model
and by mamntaining a diversified portiolio of products

3) Counterparty and Third Party Risk

The Company 15 exposed to defaull nsk in respect of the issuers of corporate debt and financial instruments  through money
market and reassurance transachions and as part of its banking arrangements Third party nisk anses with regard 1o rehance upon
external suppliers of certain administration and [T development services

The Company seeks to limit the potential exposure to loss from counterparty and thed party falure through setting robust
selechon critena and exposure imits covenng factors such as counterparty financial sirength sectors and geography Exposures
aganst imits are actively monitored with tngger levels being set and management action being taken o pre-empt loss from
default events
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4) UK Financlal Services sector contagion nsks
As a sgnificant participant in the UK retall financial services sector the earnings of the Company are influenced by the
perception and confidence of the retail Investor with the sector as a whole

Factors such as nvestment market performance acthons by regulators and shock events such as significant market fallures can
impact the confidence of retall Investors and the tming of ther purchase of financia! services products The Company seeks to
ritigate these nsks through differentiating its business model from that of its competitors This includes operating a diversified
portfolo of businesses In the UK

5} Monrtality catastrophe and other assumption uncertainties

The Company writes significant levels of mmediate and defered annuity business and protechion business The wnhng of long
term insurance business necessanly requrres the setting of assumptions for long term trends in factors such as mortalty,
persistency, valuaton interest rates and credit defaults

The Company uses its prnicing capabiliies 1o assess and charge an appropnate prermium for known nsk factors wath stress testing
undertaken to validole the oppropnateness of key assumptions However scenanos such as a rapid advance in medical
science leading to significantly enhanced annuitant longevity or an eveni causing widespread moertality/morbidity, coupted
with a reinsurer default may impact profitability and capital Extreme shifts in financial markets and in the brocder economic
environment may also require other assumphons to be recalibrated

6) Industry Change

The Company may not maximise opportunifies from structural and other changes within the financial services sector

The financial services sector continues to go through o pericd of change This presents a range of challenges as well as
opportunities to providers of sufficient scale such as the Company Significant changes in the markets in which we operate may
require the review and re-clignment of elements of our business strategy A falure to be sufficiently responsive toc potenhal
change and understand the imphcation to our businesses or the Incomrect execuhon of change may impact the achievement
of our strategic objectives We seek to ensure we have market-leading expertise in the core fields n which we operate, and
actively focus on refaining the best personnet with the knowledge to design and support our products and manage ther
evolution as market and consumer requirements change

Key performonce Indicators

The drectors review a range of performance indicators in monitonng the performance of the Company with the following
regarded as key performance indicators

IFRS profit before tax - £120m (2010 £546m) - This measures the ioss or profit In @ single penod before deducting tax This gives an
nsight into the Company's ability to generate cash fiows to support dividends during a penod

Shareholder funds - £3,273m (2010 £4 174m) - This represents the assets that remain once all the Company's kabithes have been
accounted for

Company regulatory caplital surplus - £2,736m? (2010 £3.146m)! - This 15 the dominant regulatery surplus capital measure for the
Company

RFigure extracted from draft unaudited regulatory returns

Further details of the Group s key performaonce indicators can be found in its published financiol statements
Resulls for the year and dividend

The results for the year are set out on pages 6 to 71

A final dividend of £500m was paid in 2011 {2010 £300m) No intenm dividend was paid during the year (2010 Nl
Directorate

The drectors of the Company who served dunng the year, together with ther dates of appointment and resignation where
appropnaie are shown below
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Financial risk management objectives

The Company's exposure to financial nisk through its financial assets and iabdiies 1s provided in defarll in noles 41 & 42 of the
financial statements

Creddors

Legal & General Group Plc agrees ferms and conditions for its business transactions with suppliers Payment 1s made in
accordance with these terms provided the supplier meets its obligations As at 31 December 2011, the average number of days
of payments outstanding for the Legal & General Group of companies was 36 days (2010 34}

Directors’ Indemnihes and Insurance

As permitted by Artictes of Associchon the directors have the benefit of an indemnity which s @ qualifying thrd party indemruty
provision as defined by Sechon 234 of the Compames Act 2006 The indemmity was in force throughout the last financial year
and 1s curenily in force The ultmate parent compony, Legal & General Group Plc, maintains an appropnate level of Dreciors’
and Officers’ hability insurance which is reviewed annually

Independent Auditors
The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as independent auditor

There 15 no requrement under the Companies Act or the Company’s Arhicies of Association to hold an Annual General Meeting
or lay the Company's Report and Accounts before the shareholders The Company has also elected to dispense the need to
appoint auditors annually

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are resporsible for prepanng the Drectors’ Report and the Tinancial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the directors fo prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the drectors have
prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standaords (IFRSs) os adopted by the
European Union In preparng these financial statements, the drectors have also elected to comply with IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satished that they give a frue and far view of the state of affars of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that penod  In prepanng these financial statements the directors are required to

s select sutable gccounting policies and then apply them consisiently

*  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

¢« state whether applicable Intermnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union have
been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explaned in the financial statements In preparing
these financial statements the directors have also elected to comply with IFRSs 1ssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board {IASB),

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s napproprate fo presume that the company will
continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explam the company’s
transachons and disclose with reasonable accuracy ot any tme the financial position of the company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other sregulanties

Each of the drectors who held office ¢t the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirms that, so far as they are each
aware, there s no retevant audit infoermathon of which the Company's auditors are unaware and each of the drectors have
taken all reasonable steps they ought to have taken as directors to ascertain any relevant audit Information and to ensure that
the Company’s auditors are aware of such informaton This confrmation 1s given in accordance with section 418(2) of the
Companies Act 2006

By Order of the Board

LB ;JJ\ML—

A D Farhurst

On behalf of Legal & General Co Sec Limited
Company Secretary

7 March 2012
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Legal & General Assurance Society Limited

We have audiled the financial statements of Legal & General Assurance Society Limited for the year ended 31 December 2011
which compnse the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Balance Sheet the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Cash Flow
Statement and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied In ther preparation is applicable law and
Internathonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Urnicn

Respeclive responsibilities of directors and audstors

As explamed more fully in the Stalement of Drrectors’ Responsibilities set out on page 4, the drectors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satsfied that they give a frue and farr view Our responsibiity 15 o audif and
express an opinion on the financial statements In accordance wath apphicable low and Internatonal Standards on Auditing {UK and
Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Prachces Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report Including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not in giving these opinilons accept or assume
responsibiity for any other purpose or to ony other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in wnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An aucht Involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the finoncial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the inancial statements are free from matenal missiatement, whether caused by fraud or eror This Includes on
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the company's circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estimales made by the drectors and the overall
presentaton of the financial statements In addihon, we read all the financial and non-inancial information in the Report and
Accounts to identfy matenal nconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal
missiaotements or iInconsistencies we consider the implicahons for our report

Opinlon on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

+ give g frue and far view of the state of the company's offairs as at 31 December 2011 and of its profit and cash flows for the
year then ended,

» have been properly prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2004

In our opinion the information given in the Directers’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the financiat statements

Matters on which we are required to report by excephon

we have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to report to you f in our
opInion

* adequale accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us, or

= the finanoal stotements are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneraton specified by law are not made, or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

(hgras

Thomas Robb (Sernicr Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audiors
London United Kingdom

7 March 2012
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2011

F. o 2010
Notes £m £m
Revenue
Gross wntten premivms VE G/2() 4379 4068
Qutward reirsurance premiyms 11 (3,329) {2 913)
Net premiums earmed 1,050 1153
Fees from fund management and investment contracts 16 330 342
Investiment retum 1%X/3 371 4899
Operahonal Income 253 20
Total revenue 2,004 6 605
Expenses
Claims and change i insurance liabilihes 6177 & 582
Relnsurance recovenes (5.060) (4 851)
Net claims and change in insurance lhabiliies 1F/4 11z 1731
Change in provisions for investment contract liabilities 1G 41 3092
Acquisttion cosis 1FG 561 517
Finance costs 1P 30 17
Other expenses 1Y/5 4%0 540
Transfers {from)/te unallocaled divisible surplus 1F {355) 162
Total expenses 1884 6 05%
Profit befcre Income tax 120 5456
Income tax income/(expense) attnbutable to policyhelder returns k4 243 (84)
Profit belore income fax attributable to equity holders of the Company 3463 462
Total ncome tax income/(expense) 1Q/9 177 {193}
Income tax fincome)/expense atinbutable to policyholder returns 9 (243) 84
income tax expense atinbutable to equity hoiders ? (66) {109)
Profil for the year athibutable to equity holders of the Company 297 353
QOther comprehensive iIncome after fax - -
Tota! comprehensive income for the year atiributable to equity holders of the Company 297 353
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2011

20m 2010 1Jan 2010

Notes £m £m £m
Assels
Investment in subsidianes 10711 1 806 1 622 1699
Purchesed interest in kong term businesses and other intangible assets N2 L] 3 3
Deferred acquisihion costs IFGN3 74% 788 824
Plant ond equipment 114 38 28 27
Investment property 1K/15 1,353 1514 13%0
Financial Investmends 1K\ & 40,378 4] 619 39 039
Reinsurers share of confract iabilities W/1a 29 897 26 290 22799
Detemad tax asset 1Q/19 317 252 399
Income tax recoverable 1Q/20 50 - -
Other assels 21 924 1227 1 480
Cash and cash equivalents IN/22 2,051 2223 2087
Total assets 77 389 75 566 69 747
Equlty
Share capital 15/23 201 201 201
Share premium 23 1,049 1 049 1 049
Retained earnings 2,723 2,926 2,873
Total shareholders’ equity 3,973 4,174 4,123
Llabillitles
Participating insurance contracts 1F/24 (i) 8,554 %183 2198
Partictpating investment contracts 1G/25 1)) 5040 5104 5005
Unallocated dvisible surplus 1F/26 109 1 446 1284
Value of in-force non-participating contracts 1F/f27 {205) 1337) {328}
Participating contract liabilities 14,480 15398 15159
Non-parhcipating insurance condracts 1F/24 (v) 31024 28094 24 990
Non-participahng invesiment contracts 1G /25 (i} 25183 2589 23480
Neon-partlcipating contract Rabllitles 56,207 53 987 48 470
Borrowmings iP/29 8 8 |
Income tax iabihhes 1Q/20 - 40 123
Payables and other financial katnhhies 1U/30 534 481 372
Cther latiithes N 2147 1378 1499
Total llabilities 73394 71 390 65 624
Total equity and liabilitles 77 349 75 564 6% 747

The notes on pages 10 1o 71 are an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements on pages 6 to 71 and the accompanying notes were approved by the board of directors on 7 March 2012 and
were signed on ther behalf by

; é A\SR\ATH

1) edon N O Wison
4 Director
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Retcined
samings
Shareholder Other
Share Share ratained Totad
capital pramium capital aquity
for the year ended 31 December 2011 £m €m £m £m £m
As a} T Jonuary paill 1049 1352 1,574 4,175
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - 8y 208 297
Dividends - - - (500) (500}
As of 31 December 201 1049 1441 1282 3973
For the year ended 31 December 2010
As at 1 January 201 1,049 1290 1,583 4123
Total comprehensive ncome for the year - - 62 291 353
Dvidends - - - (300) {300}
200 1,049 1352 1 574 4174

As at 31 December
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Legal & General Assurance Society bmited
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2011 2010

Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit tot the year 297 353
Adjusiments for non-cash mavements in net profit tor the year
Redlsed and unrealised gains on financial investiments and investment properties 757 {2 689)
Reducthion in camyng value of iInvestments in subsidianes 11 15 78
Investment Income {1.351) 1 431}
Interest expense 146 14
Income tax incomel}/expense Qarn 193
Other adjustments 8 9
Net (increase)}/decrease In operational assets
Investments held for trading or designated as far value through protit or loss 4603 {847)
Other assets (3.324) {3095)
Net Increase/(decrease) In operational liabllities
Insurance contragts 2 300 3o
Transter 1o unallocated divisible surplus {354) 182
Investment controcts {(771) 2510
Value of In-force non-parhcipating confracts 132 {9}
Other liabilites 940 682
Cash used in operations {90%) (978}
Interest pad (§1))] {16}
Interest received 657 754
Income tax {paid)/receved (78) 129}
Dividends receved 639 706
Net cash flows frem coperating activities 343 43%
Cash flows from Investing activities
Net acquisition of plant and equipment {15) {10
Net cash flows from Investing activities {15) {10
Cash flows from tinancing activities
Dividend distnbutions to ordinary equity holders of the Company dunng the year {500) {300)
Proceeds from borrowings - 7
Net cash flows from financing activities (500) {293)
Met Increase in cash and cash equivalents (172) 136
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2223 2087
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December pr] 2 051 2223

The Company’s cash flow statement includes all cash and cash equivalent flows Including those relating to the UK long term fund

pohcyholders
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1. Accounting policies

A Basis of preparation

The Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS)
issued by the Internahional Accounting Standards Board (LASB) as adopted by the European Union and with those parts of the
UK Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The Company's inancial statements alse comply with
IFRS and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitiee (IFRIC) interpretations as issued by the IASB  The financial
statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention as modified by the revaluation of land and buildings and
financial assets and financial kabilihes (including denvaive instruments) at far value through profit and loss

These separate financial statiements contan information about Legal and General Assuronce Society Limited as an individual
company and do not contain consolidated financiat informaton The Company s included in the group accounts of Legal &
General Group Plc and has taken advantage of the exemphion under Section 400 of the Companies' Act 2006

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of lquidity This 1s considered to be more relevant than a before and after 12
moenths presentaton given the long term nature of the Company's core business Each asset and lability ine tem which
combines amounts expected io be recovered or setiled before and after 12 months from the balance sheet date, disclosure
of the spht 1s made by way of a note

Financial assets and financial habilthes are disclosed gross in the bolance sheet unless a legally enforceable nght of offset exusts
and there s an infenhion to settle recognised amounis on a net basis Income and expenses are not offset n the income
statement unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or IFRIC interpretation as detaled in the opplcable
accounting policies of the Company

First hme adoplion of IFRS

These financial statements represent the first annual financial statements of the Company prepared n accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards  as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board The Company
adopted IFRS 1n accordance with IFRS 1, Frst-time Adoption of International financial Reporting $tandards The first date at
which IFRS was applied was January 1 2010 In accordance with IFRS, the Company has

a} provided comparative financial information,

b} applied the same accounting policies throughout all pencds presented

c) retrospecthively applied ali effective IFRS standards as of December 31 2011, as required, and

d} applied ceftain ophonal exemphons and certain mandatory exceptions as applicable for first ime [FRS adopters

The disclosure required by IFRS 1 concerning the transihon from UK GAAP to IFRS 1s given in Note 43
The Company has taken advantage of the following exceptions and exemptions as permitted by IFRS 1

Compeurd Financial instruments

The equity components of historic compound financial instruments which were no longer outstanding at the date of transition
to IFRS have not been separated

Investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities

Deemed cost for those investments in subsichanes at the date of fronsiion to IFRS 1s icken to be the previous GAAP canmying
amount af that date

B Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements includes the use of estmates and assumphons which offect items reporied In the
consohdated balance sheet and income statement and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabiliies ot the date of the
financial statements  Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current crcumstances and
future events and achions actual results may differ from those estmates, possibly sigruficantly  This is parhcularty relevant to the
following

The determination of fair values of investment property (Notes 1K and 15)

Investiment property in the UK 15 valued bi-annually by external chartered surveyors at open market values in accordance with
the ‘Apprasal and Valuahon Manual” of The Roval Insttution of Chartered Surveyors or using internal valuations and estmates
during the intervening penod Qutside the UK, valuations are produced n conunchon with external qualified professional
valuers in the countnes concerned In the event of a matenal change in market conditions between the valuchon date and
balance sheet date an internal valuation s performed and adjustments made to reflect any matenal changes in far value

The determmation of fair values of unquoted and iliquid financlal investments {Notes 1K and 14)

For unquoted financial nvestments the Company obtains pricing informahon from a range of pricing services ond brokers
Where there are ndicahons that there s no active market the Company seeks further evidence of the far value from
aliemative pncing sources and market informahon Pnionty 1s given to publicly available prices from independent sources when
avallable, but overall the source of pncing and/or the valuation techrique 15 chosen with the objective of amving at a far
value measurement which reflects the price of which an orderly transachon would take place between market parficipants on
the measurement date The valuahon techniques include the use of recent arm’s length fransactions reference o other
mstruments that are substanhially the same discounted cash flow analysis and, if applicable, enterprnse valuation and may
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

include a number of assumptions relating to vanables such as credit nsk and interest rates Changes in assumptions relating to
these variables could positively or negatively mpact the reported far value of these instruments

Estimation of deferred acquisition costs (Notes 1F 1G and 13)

Significant costs are incured In conneclion with acquitng new business, such as initral commassion and the indirect costs of
obtaining and processing new business  These costs are capitalised and amortised in accordance with the Company’s
accounting pelicies  The recoverabilty of these assets 1s measured ond impared f the projected future margins are less than
the carrying value of the assets To the extent that the future margins differ from those anticipated, an adjustment to the
carrying value of the deferred acquisition cost assets will be necessary

For participating contracts, acquisiion costs are charged to the mcome statement when incurred

Tax balances {(Notes 1Q and %)
The current tax expense 15 based on the taxable profits for the year after any adjustments in respect of prior years The
judgements made, and uncertainties considered, In amving at tax balances in the financial statements are discussed in Note 9

Deferred tax assets are recognised for temporary differences and unused tax losses The recognition of a defered tax asset in
respect of tax losses 15 supported by management's best estmate of future taxable profits o absore the losses In future years
These taxable profit projections are based on assumptions consistent with those used for EEV reporting purposes Deferred tax
assets and Labiities are offsef to the exient it 1s permissibie under 1IAS 1 The net movement in defered tax assets and liabilifies
durng the year s disclosed in Note 19

Insurance and investment contract liabilities (Notes 1, 1G, 24 and 25} and associated balances

Long term business llabiities can never be definive as to ther timing or the amount of clams and are therefore subject to
regular reassessment  The significant estimates and assumptions used in calculating insurance liabilhes are disclosed in Note
28

o Summary of signficant accounhing policies

The Company has selected accounting polhcies which state farly s financial posttion and financial performance for a
reporting penod The accounting pohcies have been consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated

The prncipal accounting policies adopted in prepanng these fiinancial statements are set out below
D Investments in subsidiary undenrtakings
Shares in trading subsidiary undertakings are camed at cost and are considered for mparrment ot each reporting date

E Product classification

The Company's products are classfied for accounting purposes as erther insurance contfracts {participating and non-
participating} or investment contracts {participating and non-parficipating) Insurance contracts are contracts which transfer
significant insurance risk to the insurer at the inception of the contract Contracts which do not fransfer significant msurance nsk
to the insurer are classified gs nvestment contracts Hybnd contract types containing both insurcnce and investment features,
have been treated as investment contracts when accounting for premiums, claims and other revenue

A number of insurance and mvestment confracts contan discretonary parhcipating features (DPF} which entifle the
policyholders to receive guaranteed benefits as well as additional benefits

= the amount or timing of which s contractually at the discretion of the Company, and

» which are contraciudally based on

- the performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract,

- realised and/or unrealised investment returns on a specified pool of assets held by the issuer, or
- the profit or loss of the Company, fund or other entity wiich issues the contract

Contracts with DPF are referred to as participatng contracts With-profils contracts are classified as participating
F Long term insurance contracts

Fremivm income
Premiums are recognised as revenue when due for payment

Claims

Death clams are accounted for on notificaton of death Surrenders for non-inked policies are accounted for when payment is
made Crhcal liness claims are accounted for when admitted All other claims and surenders are accounted for when
payment 1s due Claims payable include the direct costs of settlernent
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1. Accounting policies (continved)

Acquisition costs

Acquisihon costs compnse direct costs, such as mihal commission, and the indirect cosis of obtaiming and processing new
business Acquisiton costs relating to non-parhcipating insurance coniracts written outside the with-profits part of the UK Long
Term Fund (LTF} which are incurred during a financiol year are defered by use of an asset which 1s amorised over the period
dunng which the costs are expected to be recoverable, and in accordance with the expected nadence of future related
margins For participating controcts, acquisiion costs are charged to the income statement when mcurred

Insurance contract liabilihes

Under cument IFRS requrements msurance coniroct habidiies are measured using UK Generally Accepted Accountng
Principles (GAAP), as permitted by IFRS 4, 'Insurance confrocts’ Insurance contract hobithes ore determined following an
annual nvestigahon of the LTF in accordance with regulatory requirements

For non-participating insurance contracts, the habiihes are calculated on the basis of curent information using the gross
premium valuaghon method This brings into account the full premiums recevable under contracts wntten having prudent
regard fo expected lapses and surenders estimated renewal and mantenance costs and contractually guaranteed benefits
For unit inked insurance contract llabilities the provision is based on the fund value together with an allowance for any excess
of future expenses over charges where appropnate

For participoling contracts, the habikhes to policyholders are determined on a realstic basis in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard (FRS) 27 ‘Ufe assurance’ This includes an assessment of the cost of any future optons and guarantees
granted to pohcyholders valued on a market consistent basis The calculation also takes account of bonus decisions which are
consistent with Legal & General Assurance Society Limited Principles and Prachces of Financial Management [PPFM} The
shareholders’ share of the future cost of bonuses 1s excluded from the assessment of the realistic habibity

In deterrmining the realistic value of labilhes for partcipating contracts, the value of future profits on non-participating business
written In the with-profits part of the fund s accounted for as part of the calculation The present value of future profits (PVFP)
for this business 15 separately determined and its value 1s deducted from the sum of the habiliies for participating contracts ond
the unallocailed divisible surplus

Unitised hiabiliies are recognised when premiums are received and non-unitised liabiihes are recognised when premiums are
due

Unallocated divisible surplus
The nature of benefits for participating contracts 1s such that the allocation of surpluses between ordinary equity holders and
participating policyholders s uncertain The amount of surplus which has not been allocated at the balance sheet date 5
classified withun labiihes as the unallccated divisible surplus Adjustments made to comply wath FRS 27 are charged to the
unallocated divisible surplus

G Investment contracts

Premium income

For investment contracts amounts collected as prermiums are not included In the income statement but are reported as
contabuhons 16 nvestment contract habilities In the balance sheet

Revenue from tnvestment contracts

Fees charged for investment management services are recognised as revenue as the services are provided Initial fees, which
exceed the level of recumng fees and relote to the future provision of services are defemed and amortised over the
anhcipated pencd in which the services will be provided

Claims

Claims are not included in the income statement but are deducted from investment contract habilihes The movement in
investment contract habiihies consists of claims ncured In the period less the comesponding elrminghon of the policyholder
liobility onginally recognised in the balance sheet and the investment return credited to policyholders

Acquisihon costs

For participating investment confracts acguisihon costs compnse direct costs such as mitial commussion and the indirect costs
of oblaming and processing new business These costs are charged to the mcome statement when incurred

For nen-participating investment contracts only drecily related acquisiion costs relating 1o investiment management services
which vary with and are related to, secunng new contracts and renewing existing contracts, cre capitalised as an intangible
asset and amortised over the penod dunng which the costs are expected to be recoverable from future revenue All other
costs are recognised as expenses when incurred
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Tranl commussion

The Company operates distnbution agreemenis with Infermedianes where further commussion costs are payable n each penod
in which a relevant pelicy remains in-force For relevant non-participating investment contracts o hability for the present value
of this future commission cost 1s recognised In the balance sheet on Incephon of the confract The present value of future
commission costs 1s defered as an asset and amorhised over the period during which the related revenue will be recognised At
each subsequent reporing date the hability s re-measured to far value because this financial lability 1s part of a portfolio of
unit inked assets and habilities whose performance s evaluated on a far value basis Any increase in the lability 1s recognised
as an additional deferred cost. Any change in lapse assumptions or revisions to the underlying assumptions for future cash flows
will be reflected in the far value movement for a perod If the future commission labilty decreases, @ comresponding
adustment ;s made to the amortisation of the asset

Investrnent contract liabilibies

Under current IFRS requirements parhcipating investment contract habilihes are measured using UK GAAP as permitted by FRS
4 (see above for Insurance contract habilihes) Parhcipating investment contract habilihies are determined in accordance with
FRS 27, ncluding a value for guarantees, in the same way as insurance contracts

Non-paricipating mvestment contracts are unit inked confracts Unit linked liabiliies are measured at far value by reference to
the value of the underlying net asset values of the Company s unitised Investment funds at the balance sheet date

Unitised ficbilhies are recognised when premiums are received and non-unihsed llabilities are recognised when premiums cre
due

H Lability adequacy tests

The Company performs hability adequacy teshing on its insurance llabiliies to ensure that the carmying amount of habilihes (less
related deferred acquisihon cests) s sufficient to cover current estmates of fulure cash flows When performing the liability
adequacy test, the Company discounts all contractual cash flows and compares this amount with the carrying value of the
icbilty Any deficiency s rmmmediately charged io the inceme statement, inially reducing deferred acquisition costs and then
by establishing a provision for losses

| Reinsurance

The Company and its insurcnce subsidianes cede Insurance premiums and risk in the normat course of business In order to imit
the potential for losses and to provide financing Outwards remnsurance premiums are accounted for in the same accounting
penod as the related prermwums for the direct or inwards reinsurance business being reinsured Reinsurance assets include
balances due from reinsurers for paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses ceded unearned prermiums and ceded
future hfe policy benefits Amounts recoverable from rensurers are eshimated In a manner consistent with the claim labilify
associated with the reinsured policy Rensurance is recorded as an asset In the balance sheet unless a nght of offset exists in
which case the asseciated lakilhes are reduced commensurately

J Intangible assets

Purchased interest in long term businesses

The camying value of purchased interests In long term business represents the remaining unamortised portion of the actuanally
determined far volues of purchased long term in-force business The value of the in-force business purchased on the
acquisition of Allance & Leicester Life Assurance Company Lid 1s amortised over its economic life

Software costs

Intangible assets, compnsing internally developed software and software purchased from third parhes are recognised in the
balance sheet if it 5 probable that the relevant future economic benefits attnbutable to the asset will flow to the Company
and ther cost can be measured rehably and are either identified as separable, or they anse from contractual or other legal
nghts regardless of whether those rights are transferable or separable Where the cntena are met software costs are copitalised
at cost and amortised over ther expected useful life

K Investments

Investment property

Land and buildings which are held for long term rental yields and capital growth are camed at far value with changes in far
value recognised in the profit and loss account within nvestment Income  Land and buildings in the UK are valued bi-annuclly
by external chartered surveyors af open market values in accordance with the *Appraisal and Vaoluation Manual’ of The Royal
Inshtution of Chartered Surveyors Qutside the UK vaiuations are produced in conjunction with external qualfied professional
valuers In the counines concerned In the event of a matenal change in market conditions between the valuation dale and
balance sheet date aninternal valuation s perfermed and adjustments made fo reflect any matenal changes in far value

Financial mvestments
The Company classfies its inancial mvestmenis on inhial recogrihion as held for trading (HFT) designated at far value through
profit or loss (FVTPL) or loans and receivables inal recognition of inancial nvestments s on the trade date

The Company's polcy 15 to measure nvestments at FYTPL All denvatives other than those designated as hedges are classified
as HFT




Notes to the Financial Statements Legal & General Assurance Society Limited
Report and Accounts 2011
1 Accounting policies (continved)

Cerfan financial investments held by the Company are designated as FVIPL as ther performance 1s evaluated on a total
retum basis consistent with asset performance reporting to the Group Investiment and Market Risk Commitiee and the
Company's investment stralegy  Assels designated as FVTPL include debt secunhies and equity instruments which would
otherwise have been classified as AFS under IAS 39 ‘Financial instruments recogmition and measurement’  Assels backing
participating and non-participating pelicyholder labthities are designated as FVIPL For parhcaipating contracts the assets are
managed on a far valve basis to maxmise the total retum to policyholders over the contract ife  The Company's non-
participating investment contract llabilihes are measured on the basis of curent information and are designated as FVIPL to
avoid an accounting mismaotch in the income statement

The far values of quoted financial Investments are based on current bid pnces If the market for a financial Investment 1s not
active the Company establishes far value by using valuation techniques such os recent arm’s length transactions, consensus
market pricing reference to similar isted investments discounted cash flow models or option pricing models

Private equily nvesiments are valued in cccordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation
Guidelines, which represent curent best practice, developed by the Association Frangais des Investisseurs en Capital, the
Bntish Venture Capital Association and the European Pnvate Equity and Venture Capital Association The techniques used for
determining farr value include earmings multiples the price of a recent iInvestment or a net asset basis

Financal investments classified as HFT and FVTPL are measured at far value with gains and losses reflected in the ncome
statement Transaction costs are expensed as iIncured

Leans and receivables are initially measured at far value plus acquisiion costs, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method

L Plant and equipment

The inihial cost of an item of plant or equipment s capitalised where it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the tem can be measured reliably The cost 15 then depreciated on a
straight line basis over the item’s estimated useful working life  This ranges from 3-20 years

M Impairment policy

The Company reviews the carrying value of is financial assets {other than those held at FVTPL) at each balance sheet date If
the carrying valve of a financial asset s impared the carying value s reduced through a charge to the income statement
There must be objective evidence of mpairment as a result of one or more events which have cccurred after the inihal
recognition of the asset Imparment 1s only recognised if the loss event has an impact on the estimated fulure cash flows of
assets held at amortsed cost

Assets which are subject to amortisation are rewiewed for mparrment whenever events or changes in circumstances incicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s far value less costs to sell
ond valug inuse

N Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash In hand, deposits held at call with banks treasury bills and other short term highly
iguid iInvestments with onginal maturties of three months or less

o] Denvahve financial instruments

The Company's activities expose it to the financial nsks of changes in foreign exchange rates and mierest rates The Company
uses denvahves such as foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swap contracts to hedge these exposures

Where the nsks ond characterstcs of derivatives embedded in other contracts are not closely related to those of the host
contract and the whole contract 1s not camed at far value the denvative is separated from that host contract and measured
at far value with far value movements reflected within investment return, unless the embedded denvative itself meets the
definhon of an insurance contract

4 Berrowings

Borrowings are recognised mihiolly ai farr value net of transaction costs  Borowings classified as habiliies are subsequently
stated at amortsed cost The difference between ihe net proceeds ond the redemption value 1s recognised in the income
statement over the borrowing penod using the effective interest method

Q Income taxes

Income iax
The iax shown in the income statement comprises cument and deferred iax

Current tax compnses tax payable on current penod profits adjusted for non-tax deductible or non-taxable tems and any
adjustments to tax payable In respect of previous penods Cument tax I1s recognised m the ncome statement unless it relales to
ilems which are recognised in other comprehensive income
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Deferred Income tax

Deferred tax 15 calculated on differences between the accounting value of assets and habihtes and ther respective tax values
Deferred tax s atso recogrised in respect of unused tax losses to the extent it 1s probable that future taxable profils will anse
agamst which the losses can be ulilised Deferred tax 1s charged or credited to the iIncome statement except when i relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive incorne

For presentation the tax shown in the income statement has been apportioned between that atinbutable to policyholders'
returns and equity holders' profits

For this apportionment, the equity holders’ tax on certain long term business 1s estmated using equity holders' profit after tax,
which 1s grossed up at the statutory tax rate For the remaining long term business the effective tax rate for that entity 15 used
The balance of ncome tax assocrated with UK long term business s classified as income tax aitributable to policyholders'
returns

Deferred tax assets and labilihes are not discounted

Deferred income tax 1s provided on temporary differences arnsing on investments in subsidianes and associates, except where
the Company controls the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future {or if it will, then it will not generate any incremental tax habiity for the Company)

R Lleases

Where a significant proportion of the nsks and rewards of ownership 15 retained by the lessor leases are classified as operating
leases Paymenis made as lessees under operaling leases (net of any incentives from the lessor) are charged to the ncome
stalement on a straight line basts over the perod of the lease

s Share copital

Equity instruments
An equily instrument 1s any coniract which evidences a residual interest in the net assets of an enhty It follows that a financial
nstrument s treated as equity i

« there s no contractual obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange financial assets or labilihes
on unfavourable terms, and

. the instrument 1s either a non-denvative which contains no contractual obhigation to deliver a vanable number of own
equity instruments or 15 o denvative which will be settled only by the Company exchanging a fixed amount of cosh, or
other financial assets for a fixed number of iis own equity Instrements

Dividend recognition

A dividend distnbution 16 the Company s shareheclders 1s recognised as a hability in the pernod in which the dividends are
authornsed and are no longer ot the discretion of the Company Final dividends are accrued when approved by the
Company's Directors and interim dividends are accrued when paid

T Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obhgathon as a result of past events, it s
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estmate of the amount of the obligation can be made Where the Company expects a provision ic be reimbursed for
example under an insurance coniract the reimbursement s recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement
s virtually certain The Company recognises a provision for onercus contracts when the expected benefils o be denved from a
contract are less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obhgatons under the contract

u Payables and other financial liabilities

Payables and other financial habilihes comprise dervative habiliies collateral receved from banks and other habiities The
denvalive habiihes comprse a vanety of exchange ifraded and over-the-counter denvative financial instruments including
futures, options, forward currency contracts and swaps such as nterest rate swaps cross-cumency swaps and credit default
swaps measured at far value

v Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transaciions ore translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevaiing at the date of the
transachons The funchonal curency of the Company’s foreign operotions is the cunency of the pnmary economic
envircnment in which these enhiies operate Foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
except when recognised in equity as qualfying cosh flow or net investment hedges

X Investment return

The reporting of investment return compnses iInvestment income unrealsed gains and losses from financial investments held ot
FVTPL and realised gains and losses from all financial assets
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Investment income includes dividends, interest and rent Dividends are accrued on an ex-dividend basis interest and rent are
included on an accruals basis Interest income for financial assets which are not classified as FVIPL s recognised using the
effective interest method

Y Cther expenses

Other expenses compnse admimistrative expenses, management fees payable, corporate expenses and other charges Other
costs are accounted for as they arse

1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective

Certain standards amendments and interpretations to exsting standards have been published which are mandatory for the
Company's accounting penods beginning on or after | January 2012 or later penods but which the Company has not adopied
earty, as follows

* Amendment to IFRS 9 *Financial Insfruments’ on classification and measurement, 1ssued in November 2009 (effective
for annual pencds commencing on or after 1 January 2015) This s the first part of a new standard on classfication and
measurement of financial assets that will replace 1AS 39 IFRS 9 has two measurement categones amoriised cost and
far value All equity instruments are measured at far value A debt instrument 15 classified as omortised cost only if the
enhly s holding it to collect contractual cash flows and the cash flows represent pnncipal and interest, otherwise 1t
must be measured at far value through profit or loss Further amendments to IFRS ¢ deabng with financicl habilities,
were published in October 2010 These include amortised cost accounting for most financial iabiliies with bifurcation
of embedded denvatives The main change s that In cases where the far value option 1s taken for financial habilihes,
the part of a far value change due to an enhity's own credit nsk s recorded in other comprehensive Income rather
than the income stotement unless this creates an accounting mismatch The Company does not intend to early
adopt this standard

+ IFRS 13, ‘Far value measurement’ ssued in May 2011 {expected to come into force for penods beginning on or after 1
Jonuary 2013) This stondard aims to improve consistency ond reduce complexty by providing o precise definition of
far value and a single scurce of far volue measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs The
requirements do not extend the use of far vaolue accounting but prowde guidance on how it should be applied
where Its use 15 already required or permifted by other standards We are currently assessing the impact which this wall
have on the Company's financial statements

16




Notes to the Financial Statements Legal & General Assurance Sociaty umited
Report and Accounts 2011
2 Analysis of revenue

(i) Long term business

Gross premivms written

Non Par Par- Investment Non Par- Par-  Investrient
ficpating ficpating Enked Tetal ticpating tepating inked Total
20M1 2013 2011 20m 2010 2010 2010 2010
fm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Individual
- Periodic §50 120 27 10%7 920 141 30 1091
- Single 1085 335 - 1,420 1168 428 - 1594
2035 455 27 2,517 2083 569 30 2 687
Group
- Penodic 371 5 - 394 434 7 - 44]
- Single 1446 - - 1448 934 2 - 38
1,857 5 - 1842 1370 9 - 137¢
3892 450 27 4,379 3458 578 30 4066

Gross premums wntten by destnation are not materally different from gross premiums wiitten by origin
The above figures include iInward reinsurance premwum of £67m {2010 £103m) from Legal & General Amenca (LGA] This amount is reinsuied to Legal &
General Pensions bmited {LGPL) under the existing reinsuronce arangement

{gross of e)

New B

New business s presented for alt long term business written by the Company including bothinsurance and investment contracts Investment confrocts are
accounted for on a deposit accounting bass and are not incleded in gross premiums wntten in the above table

Non Par Par  Investment Nen - Par- Par-  investment
licpaiing ticpating Bnked Total tcpating tepaing nked Total
20 o 2om 01 2010 2010 2010 Q10
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
Individual
- Penodic i) ] 2 32 445 118 2 348 488
- Single 452 372 2184 3020 1142 343 1435 320
593 374 2498 3 455 1260 345 2003 3408
Group
- Penodic 16 - - s 57 1 - 58
- Single 1487 - - 1451 897 2 - 899
1577 - - 1577 954 3 - 957
2170 374 2498 5042 2214 348 2003 4 565

Thera are three classes of business for conventional individual protection where thera s a matenal ditterence between gross and net of reinsurance
annualised new business premiums term assurance which s 26.8% retnsured (2010 38 %) whole of life assurance which 1s 21 5% reinsured (2010 18 1%)
and income protection which s 62 0% reinsured {2010 43 1%)

Non-profit pension new businass 15 100% reinsured {2010 100%} ond group protechon new business is 67.8% reinsured (2010 43 7%}

New penodic premiums anse where the ferms and condiions anbeipate mere than one premium being paid over the penod of the policy new single
premiums compnsa all premiums which do not fall o be categornsed as periodic premiums
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3 Investment retumn
2011 2010
£m £m
Financial investment retumn’ 188 4597
Property investment return® 205 302
Investment retun an 4,899

1 Finonclal nvestment! retum includes farr value gams and losses divdends oand interest Net (losses)/gains (excluding nterest and divdend income] of
£{832Im {2010 £2 655m) arose on financial investments desgnated as FYIPL and £58m (2010 £(54)m) arose on denvative contracts classified as HFT
Investment income of £7m {2010 £16m) arose on loans and receivables

2 Preperty investment retum includes £191m {2010 £204m) of rental ncome

4 Net claims and change In insurance liabilities
201 2010
From continuing operations £&m £m
Clams paid
- gross 3744 asm
- [&INSUIONCE recovenes {2 025) {1.841)
171 1640
Change in insurance labilities
- gross 243 3081
- reInsurance recovenes (3025) [2990)
Net claims and change in insurance liabliities 117 173
The rolHforward of the insurance contract fabilties s provided in Note 24
Net clams and change in nswwrance Babiities relate wholly to long term insurance
5 Other expenses
2011 2000
£m £m
Auciitor s remuneration 3 - -
Depreciation of plant and equipment 14 8 10
Raduchon in camang value of iInvestmant in subsiclianes n 16 77
Amorisation of purchased interest in long term businesses and other infangibles - 1
Drect operaling expenses ansng from investment properhes which generate rental income 11 15
Lecse rental costs 28 27
Inswance of nsk on unit inked nvestment conhracts 45 34
Other administrative expenses 382 341
Total other expenses 490 540

The Company does not have drect staft costs Other group entifies contract staff tor the needs of the Companys activiles and then recharge a
proportion of those costs to the Company The recharged costs are part of "Other administrative expenses™ above Please akso reter to Note 7 Employee
intormation

[ Auditors’ remuneration
om 2010
£m im
Remuneration recevable by the Company s auditor for the audit of the Company s inancial statements 04 04
Jotal remuneration 04 04

The disclosure of fees payable to the auditor and its associales for other [non-audit seraces) has not been made because this has been
dsclosed in the consobdated financial stotements of the Group

7 Employee information

The Company does not have direct employees since they are employed by a tellow subsidiary of Lega! & General Group Pic  The Company s recharged
a proportion of the siaff cosls
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8 Foreign exchange and exchange rates

Profit for the year includes foreign exchange gains and losses on financial instruments The profit for the year also includes foreign exchange losses of
£1 2m (2010 £1 8m} onsing on conversion of monetary assets and liabiihes to funchienal curencies

Pnncipal rates of exchange used for translation are

2011 2010 2010

Year end Year end 1Jan

United States Dollar 158 157 142

Euro 120 117 i3
9 Income tax expense

201 2010

£m £m

Cument tax 9 71

Deferred tax

- Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (135) 144

- Reduction in UK Cornporate fax rate to 25% (2010 27%) 2 1

Total deferred tax (133) 147

Adjustment to equity holders tax In respect of prior years (25) (25)

Total Income tax expense {177) 193

Less tax atinbutable to policyholder retums 243 (84}

Income tax expense attnbutable to equity holders [ 109

For presentahon the tax shown in the income statement has been apportioned between that attnbutabie policyholders returns and equity holders profits

For this apportionment the equity holders tax on long term business s esimated using equily holders profit ofter tax which s grossed up at the statutory
tax rate The balance of ncome tax associated with UK long term business 1s classified as income tax attnbutable to pohcyholders retumns

The tax attnbutable 1o equity holders differs from the tax calculated at the standard corporation tax rate applicable to companes operating in the UK of
24 5% (2010 28%} The differences are explaned below

2011 2010
£m £m
Profit from continuing operahens before iIncome tax atinbutable to equity holders of the Company 363 4462
Equity holders income tax expense calculated at 26 5% (2010 28%) 26 12%
Effects of
Disallowable expenditure for tax purposes 9 7
Non iaxcble income such os dvidends (4) (29)
Adjustments in respect of pnor years tax {25) [25)
Differences between taxable and accounhng nvestment gains é 3
Lower 1ax on Shareholder Retained Capital {SRC} investment return (18) {5
Impact of reduchon in UK corporation tax rate to 25% (2010 27%) on deferred tax balances 2 1
Income tax expense athibutable to equity holders &b 109

Following the 2010 Budget announcement the rate of UK corporation tax is expected to reduce progressively to 23% by 1 Apni 2014 To calculate the
current fax on UK profits the rate of tax used 15 26 5% {2010 28%) which s the UK average rate of corporation tax applicable for the year

The UK rate of tax used for the calculahon of deferred taxs 25% {2010 27%) which s the rate of corporahon 1ax that s expected to opply when the
ditferences as mentioned above reverse This rate wall apply from 1st Apnl 2012 (2010 15t Apnl 2011) onwards

Te calculate curent and deferred tax on overseas profils the refevant tax rates applicable in those countnes have been applied

Tax calcuiated on profit betore tax at 246 5% {2010 28%} would amount to £96m (2010 £129m) The difference between this number and the total tax of
£{177)m {2010 £193m) s made up of the reconciing items above which total £{30)m (2010 £[20im) and the effect of the apportionment methodology on
tax applicable to policyholder returns of £(243}m {2010 £84m)

10 Dividends

Pef share Total Pershare Total
20Mm 20m 2010 2010
P £m [+3 £m
Ordinary share dividends paid in the year
- Current year tinal dividend 24823 500 148 94 300
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11 Investment in subsidiaries
2010 010
£m £m
Cost i
As ot 1 January 1822 1499 I
Acquisihons - .
Disposals - -
Reduchon in canying value [L1)) 77}
As at 3t December 14608 14622
The reduchon in the camying value has been made to reflect capital repayments
12 Purchased interestin long term business and other intangible assets
PILTB Other PILTB Other
Intangible intongble
assety Totad assels Total
0N 01 201 2010 2010 2010
£m £m £m £m im £m
Cost and Net Book Value
As ot 1 January 3 - 3 3 - 3
Addtions - 3 3 - - -
As ot 31 December 3 3 & 3 - 3
No amortisation has been charged for the year ended 31 December 2011 on other infangible assets
13 Defemed acquisition costs :
() Analysls of deferred acquisition cosls
Gross Gross !
2om 2010
Notes £m £m
Insurance contract deferred acquisition costs {i) - 1
Investment confract deferred acgusiion costs {m} 749 787
Defened acquisition costs 747 788
(i) Insurance contract deferred acquisition costs
Gross Gross
o 2010
£m £m
As ot 1 Janvary 1 5
Acquisihon costs deterred - -
Amortsahon charged to income m 4
Other - -
As at 31 December - !
To be amorlised wathin 12 months - 1
Ta be amerlised after 12 months - -
(§i) Invesiment contract deferred acquisllior costs
Gross Gross
20m 2010
£m im |
As at ) January 788 819
Acquisition costs deferred &1 &0
Amortsahon charged to income (89 Bé)
Otner an {8}
As at 31 December 749 787
Te be amorhised within 12 menths 132 128
To be amortised after 12 months 817 659

Therg are no deferred acquisition costs relating to reinsurance
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14 Plant and equipment
20m 010
£m £m
Cost
As at 1 January ] 84
Additons 18 12
Disposals (4) {8)
As ot 31 December 100 88
A d Deprecla
As at | Janvary 40 57
Provided duing the yeor 8 10
Disposats (4) i7}
As al 31 December 44 &0
Net book value at 31 December 35 28
15 investment property
Sharsholder Nen profit Whh Unit Total
non unit proitts Nnked
linked
2011 2013 2011 2011 2011
£m £m £m £m £m
Falr vatue at 1 Janvary n - 124 1379 1514
Additions - - 3 - 3
Impraovements - - . 5 5
Disposals () - (8) (174) (183)
Feur value gain/{loss) 1 - 3 0 14
Falr value at 31 December " - 122 1220 1353
Sharehaolder Non profit With- Unit Totat
nan-unit profity nked
Enked
2010 2010 200 2010 2010
£m £m £m £Em £m
Fair value at 1 January 8 - 97 1285 1390
Additions - - - 50 50
Improvemenits 2 - 20 2 24
Disposals - - - {48) [48)
Farr value gain/({loss} 1 - 7 $0 98
Falr value at 31 December n - 124 1379 1514
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Shareholder Non profit With Unil Total
non uni profits Enked
Enked
20m 20 200 Folal xmn
Notes £m £m Em £m £m
Financlal Investments ot fair value designated as
Far vatue through profit or loss 2428 3 15 857 21 905 40 203
Held for trading 3 1 145 5 174
Financal investments at fair value (1 2441 4 14022 21 110 40 377
Loans and recervables {ii} - - 1 - 1
Totad financlal Investiments 2440 4 14023 21 M0 40 373
Expected to be received within 12 months 5897
Expected to be recerved after 12 months 34 481
Shereholder Nan profit With- Unut Total
non-unit profits Enked
Enked
2010 2010 2010 210 2010
Notes £m £m £m £m £m
Financial invesiments at talz value designated as
Far value through profit or loss 1555 1 16 492 23333 4] 381
Held for trading 7 - 84 5 P46
Financial investments ot far value 0] 1562 1 16 576 23338 41 477
Loans and recevables m 1n - 8% 42 142
Totat finoncial Investments 1 578 1 16 665 23 380 41 5619
Expected o be received within 12 months 5581
Expectad to be received after 12 manths 36038
Shareholder Non profit With- Urut Total
non-unit profis inked
inked
1lJan 1 Jan 1 Jan 1 Jan 1 Jan
2010 o010 2010 2010 010
Notes £m £m £rry £m £m
financlal investments ot talr valve designated as
Fair value through profit or loss 1084 163 15948 20 511 37 726
Held for trading - 2 62 8 72
Financial nvestments of fair value 7] 1084 165 14 030 20519 37798
Leans and recewvobles (i} 33 1 296 211 1241
Total financial investments 1117 166 16 326 21430 37039
Expected fo be received wathin 12 months 5249
Expected fo be receved after 12 months 33790

Investrment nsks on urid Inked assets are borne by the policyholders The remaining nsks are outined in the sk monagement note {see Note 42)

Financial investments include £28m (2010 £34m) of debt secunties pledged as collateral against denvative liabilites The assets used as collateral are
Treasury Giits {2010 Treasury Gilts} having a residual matunty of over 44 years (2010 over 45 years) Society 1s entiled to receive all of the cash flows from
the asset dunng the penod when it 1s pledged as colloteral Further there is na obligation to pay or transfer these cash flows to another enhly Society
can decide to subshtule an assel which is designated as collateral at any ime  provided the relevant terms and conditions of the International Swop

Dealers Association agreement are met
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Notes to the Financial $tatements Lega! & General Assurance Seclely Limited
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16 Financial investments (continved)

(i) Ainancial investments ot folr vclue

Shareholder Non profit With- Unit Total
nen unl profits Hnked
linked
201 2001 2011 21 201
Notes £m £m £m £m £m
Equty secunhes 1581 1 5831 18 8%4 24 309
Deb! securifies 847 2 9.852 495 15 852
Accrued Interest 10 - 174 58 242
Dervative assels 17 3 1 145 5 174
Total investments at toir value 244 4 14022 2 710 40 377
Shareholder Non profit With- Urut Total
non-unit profits knked
fnked
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
Notes im £m £m £m Em
Equity securities 1072 - & 575 18 654 26 301
Debt secunties A76 1 9 740 4620 14 837
Accrued interest 7 - 177 59 243
Derivative assets 17 7 - 84 5 26
Tetal Investments al fab value 1542 i 146 576 23338 41 477
Shareholder Non profif With- Urut Total
noa-unit profits knked
fnked
1Jan 1 Jon 1Jan 1 jan 1Jan
2010 010 010 2010 2010
Nofes £m &m £m £m &m
Equity secunhes 996 1 5921 16 665 23583
Debt secunties 87 160 843 3783 13873
Accrued interest 1 2 204 62 269
Derivative assets 17 - 2 62 ? 73
Total investments at faly vatue 1084 165 16 030 2059 37798

Private equty investments are included within equity secunties A gain of £8m (2010 gan of £10m) has been recognised in the income statement in respect
of the movement in far value of these investments

Property investments which are held via partnershups or unit frust vehicles are also included wathin equity secunties A gain of £106m (2010 loss of £94m) has
been recognised in the income staternent in respect of the movement in for value of these investments
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Notes to the Financial Statements Legal & General Assirance Sodety Lrmited

Report and Accounts 2011
16  Financial investments {(continved)
{0} Loens and receivables
Shatebholdet Non pealit With L1 ] Total
non-unlt profihs nked
fnked
on 21 2om 20 2011
£m £m £m £m Em
Deposuts with credit inshtutions - - - - -
Qther loans - - 1 - ]
Tetal lcans and recelvables - - 1 - ]
Shaseholder Non profl} Withe Unit Total
non-unit profits knked
nked
2010 2010 010 2010 2010
£m £m £m im £m
Depuasits with credit imsfitutions H - =1 42 141
Other ioans - - } - |
Total lcons and receivables 11 - 89 42 142
Shareholder Non profit with- Unit Totad
non-unit proflts Inked
linkad
1Jon 1lJan 1Jon 1 Jan 1 Jan
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
£m £m im £m im
Deposits with credit institutions 33 1 295 Eall 1240
Other loans - - 1 - 1
Total leans and receivables 33 1 296 911 1241

There are no material differances between the camrying valves reflected above ond the far valus of these lvans

(@1) Falr value hierarchy
Faur value & the amount for which an assat could be axchanged or o labifity setiled between knowledgeable wiling pariies in on am s length transaction

Falt value maaswrements are based on cbservable and unobservable inputs Observable inputs reflect market data ebtained from Independent sources
while unobservable inputs reflects the Company s view of market assurnptions In the absence of observable market infomation The Company utilses
techniques that maxdmese the wse of observable nputs and mirknise the use of ungbservable inputs

Tha levek of falr value measurement bases are defined as follows

tevel ] fair volues measured using quoted prices {unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets or labiiities

Level 2 far vales measured using valuation techniques for all Inputs significant to the measwrement other than quoted prices included within Levet 1 that
are cbservable for the asset or lebility elther directly {1 e as pnces) or indirectly [ a derved from prices)

Level 3 far values measured using valuation techniques for any input for the asset or fability significant to the measurernant thot s not based on observaoble
market dota {uncbservable inputs)

24
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14 Financial iInvestments (continved)
(i) Fair valve hierarchy (continved)

The following table presents the Company s assets by IFRS 7 huerarchy levels

Amorllsed
Tolal Level 1 lavel 2 Level 3 cosl
For the vear ended 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m £m
Shareholder
Equty securities 1 581 10%0 = 270 -
Debt securihes 847 252 595 - -
Accrued interast 10 3 7 - -
Denvative assets 3 a - - -
Loons and receivables - B - . .
Non profit non-unit linked
Equty securties 1 1 - . .
Debt securties 2 - 2 . -
Accrued interest - - B - -
Denvaotive assats 13 - 1 - -
Loars and recelvables - - - - -
With-profils
Equity securitles 5831 3804 22 2003 -
Debt securities ? 852 2757 7 0%0 5 -
Accrued Interest 174 32 142 - -
Denvative assets 145 22 140 3 -
Loans and receivables 1 - - - ]
Unit linked
Equity sacuritles 16 8% 14 020 414 242 -
Cebt securities 495 2328 24622 - -
Accryed interest 58 17 41 - -
Derivative assels 5 5 - - -
Loans and receivobles - - - - .
Total inanclal investiments 40 378 26 334 11 498 2543 1
Amorlised
Total lovel ) Level 2 Leveid cost
For the vear ended 31 December 2030 £m £m £m £m £
Sharehoider
Equity securities 1072 851 135 1046 -
Debt securities 474 236 240 - -
Accrued interest 7 3 4 - -
Denvotive assets a 5 3 - -
Loans and receivables 1t - - - n
Non profit non-unit Inked
Equity securtles - - - . .
Deabt sacurities ¥ - 1 . -
Accrued interest - - - - .
Derivative assets - - - - -
Loans and receivables - - - - -
With-profits
Equity securities & 575 4 470 17 2088 -
Debt securities 9 740 2670 7065 5 -
Accrued interest 177 34 143 - -
Denvative assets 83 5 78 -
Loans and receivables 89 - - - 89
Unit finked
Equily securilies 18 654 18173 219 262 -
Debt securities 4620 21464 2456 -
Accrued interest 59 17 42 - -
Denvative ossets 5 5 - - -
Loans ond receivables 42 - - - 42
Total financlal investments 41 819 2B 433 10 283 2481 142
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16 Financial investments (confinued)
{ili) Falr value hierarchy {continved)

Legol & General Assurance Sodety Umited
Report and Accounts 2011

Amodiied
Total level t Level 2 level 3 cost

Asal 1 January 2010 £m £m £m £m £m
Shareholder
Equity secunhes 99& B8O9 99 88 -
Deb! secunties 87 79 17 - -
Accrued interest 1 1 - - -
Derivative ossets 1 - 1 - -
Loans and receivabilas 33 - - - 33
Non profit non-unit linked
Eguity secunties 1 1 - - -
Debt securities 160 152 8 - -
Accrued inferest 2 2 - - -
Derlvotlve assets 2 - 2 - -
Loans and recervables 1 - - B i
With-profils
Equity securhes 5921 4137 2 1792 -
Debt securdiies 9 843 2704 7134 5 -
Accrued interes! 204 3z 167 - -
Dervative assels 62 L] 57 - -
Loons ond receivables 294 - - - 296
Unit inkad
Equity securities 16 643 16 389 a5 229 -
Deb! securtes 3783 1756 2027 - -
Accrued interest 62 16 44 - -
Derlvative assets 10 10 - - -
Leons and receivables 911 - - . M
Tola) financial tnvestments 37039 26079 9 05 2114 1241

All of the Company s level 2 assets have been valued using standard market pnaing sources such os Boxx IDC and Bloomberg However following
consultation with our pricing providers ond a number of thelr contibuling brokers we have considered that these prices are not fzom a sutably active
market and have classified ther as level 2

Level 3 assets where intermnal models are used to represent o small proportion of assets to which shareholders are exposed and reflect unquotad equities
Including investments in prvate equity property vehicle suspended securtles and manually priced derivatives

In many situations Inputs used to measure the foir value of an asset or liability may fall inlo different levels of the talr value heerarchy In these situations
the Cornpany determines the level in whuch the folr value fofs based upon the lowest level Input that s significant o the determination of the far value
As aresull boih observable and unobservable inpuls may be used in the determination of failr values that the Company has classified with level 3

The Company determines the far values of certain inancial astets and fabilties based on quoted maorket prces where avallable The Company aso
determines far volue based on estimated tuture cash flows discounted at the appropricte cument market rale As appropriate fair values reflect
adjustmaents for counterparly credlt qualty the Company s credit standing liquidity and risk margins an unobservable inputs

Where quoted market prices are not available far valve estimates are mode at a point in ime based on relevant market dato os well as the best
Intormation cbout the iIndividual finoncial instrument liqud market conditions have resulted In inactive markets for certan of the Company s financial
Instruments As aresult there is generally no or mited observable market data for these assets and labilities Farr value estimates for financial instruments
deemed to be in oniliquid market are based on judgments regarding current economic condiions liquidity discounts currency credit and interest rate
risks 1035 expenence and other factors These falr values are estimates and involve considerable uncertainty and variability as o resul! of the inputs
selected and moy differ significantly from the values that would haove been used had a ready market existed ond the differences could be materiol Asa
result such calculoted far value estimates may not be reafisabte in an immediate sale or setflernent of the instrument In addition changes in the
underlying assumptions used in the far value measurement technigue could significantly affect these falr volue estimates

Farr values are subject to o control rumework designed o ensure that nput vardables and culpuls are assessed iIndependent of the nsk taker These inputs
and outputs are reviewed and approved by a voluation commitiee
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14 Financial investments (continued)

(a} Significant ransters between level | and level 2
There have been no significant transters between level ) and level 2

(b} Assets measured ol falr value based on level 3

Equity Debt Ecyuity Debt

secuities swcurities Total secunhes secuniies Total
20n 200 o1 2010 2010 2010

£m £m £m £m £m im

As ot | Janvary 2454 - 2458 2109 - 2107

Total gains or losses for the penod recognised

- in profit and loss 73 - 73 298 - 298
Purchases 209 . 20% 194 - 194
Sales (203) . (203} {145) - (145)
Transfers into level 3 - 5 5 - - .
Other 3 - 3 . - -
As al 31 December 2538 5 2543 2456 - 2 456

Equty securties analysls Includes derivative assets of £3m (2010 £nil}

() Fair value hlerarchy (conlinuad)

{c) Effect on changes in significant uncbservable inpuls (level 3) to reasonably possible alternative assumptons

As discussed obove the far values of financial instruments are In certain drecumstances measured wusing valuation technlques that incorperate assumptions
that are not evidenced by pnces from observable cumrent market transactions in the same instrument and are not based on observable market data The
followang table shows the level 3 inandal instruments camed at fair value as at the balonce sheet date the valuation baus main assumptions used In the
valuation of these instruments and reascnably possble Increases or decreases in far value based on recsonably possible alternative assumphions

Reczonubly possible
__ atemative agsumptions

Cumrent Increase Decrease
talr In ftalr in lak
For the year ended 31 December 2011 value value value
Main o0 200 20m
Anancial Instruments assumplions £m £m £m
Assats
Shareholder
- Private equity investment vehicles’ Price eamings multiple 13 1 (4]
- Unquoted investments in property vehlcles? Property yleid occupancy 257 13 (13)
With-profits
- Private equity investment vehicles’ Price eamings multiple 145 7 ()]
- Unqueted investments in property vehlcles® Property yleld occupancy 1841 3 (73)
- Other 3 - -
Unit linkecd
- Unquoted investments in property venicles? Property yletd occupancy 262 13 {13)
Total 2542 127 {127)
Reasonatly pasible
attemalive assumplions
Cumrent Increase Decrece
fair n for in for
For the year ended 31 December 2010 value vailua vaolue
Main 2010 010 010
Financlal Instryments assumphens £m &m £m
Assets
Shareholder
Privote equity investment vehicles’ Price samings mullipie 14 1 {1}
- Unquoted investmenits in property vehicles® Property yield occupancy 92 1 4]
with profits
- Pnvate equity investment vehicles' Price eomings multiple 126 ? {9
- Unquoted investments in property vehicles? Property yield cccupancy 1962 93 93)
Unit linked
- Unquoted investiments in property vahletes? Property yield cccupancy 262 12 {12)
Total 2 456 1é {118)

'Pnvate equily investments are valued in occordance with the International Pnivate Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines Reosonably possible
altemctive valuations hove been determined using alternclive price earnings muliiples

2Unquoted investments in property vehicles are valued by independent voluers on the basis of open market value as defined in the oppraisal ond
valuation manual of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors Reasonably possible alternctive valuations have been determined using alternative yield

and occupancy assumphions
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17 Derivative assets and liabilities

Legal & General Assurance Soctety Lmited
Report and Accounts 2011

Conhract/ Centroct/
notional Fair values notienal For values
amount Aszafs Llobites’ amount Assets Lisbublies’
2011 201 on 2010 2010 2010
£m £m fm £m £m £m
Shareholder derivatives
Interest rate contracts - held for rading (210) - 12 212 3 8
Forward foreign exchange coniracts - held for trading - 1 10 - 4 1
Equity/index derivatives - held for trading 107 2 . (43) - 1
Tetal shareholder derivatives 3 22 7 10
Non profit non-unit linked derivatives
Equityfindex denvatives - held for irading 97 t . 12 - -
Tetal non profit non-uni linked dertvatives ] - - -
With-profits dertvatives
Interest rale contracts - held for trading 1,352 109 102 1 449 51 57
Forward foreign exchange contracts - held for frading - 18 7 - 4 1
Equity/index denvatives - held for trading 422 as 4 472 28 14
Other denvatives - held for trading 1 - . 1 1 -
Tota! with-profifs derivatives 165 113 84 84
Unit linked derivatives.
Forward forergn exchange contracts - held for trading - 4 1 - 4 7
Equity/index denvatives - held for trading {211) ] 2 {267) - 3
Other denvatives - held for frading E - - 8 1 -
Total unit linked derlvatives 5 3 5 10
Total dertvative assets and labdities 174 138 26 104
Contract/
notional Far values
amount Assels Liobilhes'
1 Jan 2010 1 Jan 2010 1Jan 2010
£m £m £m
Sharehotder derivatives
Equity/index denvatrves - held tor trading 2 - -
Total shareholder derivatives - -
Neon proft nen-unit linked derivatlves
Equity/index denvatives - held for trading 112 2 -
Total nen profit non-unk linked dertvatives 2 -
With-profits dertvatlves
Interesi rate contracts - held for frading N7 s 42
Forward foreign exchange contracts - held for trading - 3 &
Equity/index deavairves - held for trading 398 22 7
Other denvatives - held for rading 2 2 -
Total with-profits derivatives 62 55
Unit inked detivatives
Forward foreign exchange contracts - held for trading - 7 1
Equity/index denvatives - held for trading 35 1 1
Other denvatives - held for trading 5 1 -
Total unit linked derdvatives ? 2
Total derivative assets and liabililles 73 57

'Denvative licibiihes are repoited in the balance sheet within Payables and other financial katilihies (Note 30)

The nottonal amounts of some denvalive instruments provide a bass for companson with instruments recognised on the balance sheel However
these amounts do not necessanly indhcate the amounts of future cash flows Involved or the cument far valre of the nstruments and therefore, do not

indicate the Company's exposure 1o credit or pnce rsks
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17 Denvative assets and habilihes {continved)

The contractual undiscounted cash flows in relation to non-unit inked denvahves have the following matunty profite

Unit inked denvahves have not been included as shareholders are not directly exposed 1o quidity nsks

Maturzity profile of undiscounted cash flows

Legal & General Assurance Society Lirmited
Report and Accounts 2011

Falr Within Over

values 1 year 1-5 yeqrs E-15 years 15-25 years 25 yaars Total
As at 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash inflows
Shareholder derivatives
Denvative assels 3 74 . - - - 74
Denvative llabilities (22) 392 5 5 - - 402
Non preflt nen-unit linked derivatives
Denvative assets ] - 1 - - - 1
With-profits derlvatives
Denvative assets 185 553 134 34 1s 5 843
Denvaiive labilities {113) 340 30 20 58 2 470
Tetal 34 1,379 170 41 173 7 1790
Cash oufflows
Shareholder derlvatives
Denvative assets 3 (71) - - - - {71}
Denvative labibhes (22) (408) (12} (7) - - (425)
Non proft non-unft linked derivailves
Denvative assets 1 - - - - - -
With-profits derivatives
Dernvative assets 145 {512) {38} {30) (83) {4 (647)
Denvative hlabiies {113) {388) {79} (346) {70) {3) {596)
Total 34 (1.377) (12%) (73) (173) (7] (1 759)
Net shareholder derivatives cash flows (4R} {7 (2) - - (20)
Net non profit non-unit Inked derlvatives cash flows - 1 - - - 1
Net with-profils derivatives cash flows 13 a7 (10 - - 50
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17 Derivative assets and liabilities {(continved)

Legal & General Assurance Society Limited
Report and Accounts 2011

Moatunty profile of undiscounted cash flows

Far Wuthen Over

values 1 yaar 1-5years S15vyearn 1525 years 25 years Jotal
As at 31 December 2010 £m £m £m £m £rm £m £m
Cash Inflows
Shareholder derivatives
Demvalive assets 7 280 5 22 -] 4 327
Derivative liabilihes {10) 99 14 12 - - 125
Non profit non-unit inked derivatives
Denvative assets - - - - - - -
Denvative atulihes - - - - - - .
With profits derivatives
Denvative assets 84 224 132 103 30 4 493
Denvative liabiities {84) 797 66 131 52 8 1054
Total (3) 1400 27 248 98 16 1999
Cash cviflows
Shareholder derivatives
Denvative assets 7 1277) 16) (16} {12) {4 (315}
Denvatrve liabilities (10} (105) 19) (10} - - {134)
Non profit nen-unlt linked derivatives
Denvative assets - - - - - - -
Denvative habiities - - - - - - -
With-profits derivalives
Denvative assels 84 202) {75) 29) {27) (4] {407)
Denvative liabilities {84} (845) {?1) (144} {58) ¥ (1,147}
Total {3) {1429) {191) (26%) {97) {17 {2 003)
Net shareholder derivalives cash flows 3) (6} a8 4 - 3
Net non profit non-uni linked derivatives cash flows - - - - - -
Net with-prefits derivatives cash flows {26) 32 9) 3} {n {7)

Matunty profile of undiscountad cash fows
Far Wilhun Over

valyes } year 1-5 years 515 years 15-25 years 25 years Total
As at 1 Jonuary 2010 Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash Inflows
Shareholder derivatives
Dervative assets - - - - - - -
Denvalive labikhes - - - - - - -
Non profit non-untt Inked derlvatives
Derivative assets 2 - 2 - - - 2
Denvatve labdities - - - - - - -
With profits derivatives
Denvative gssets 62 289 23 84 28 4 498
Denvative habilities {55} 256 84 108 49 14 508
Total 9 545 179 192 77 15 1008
Cash outflows
Shareholder derivatives
Denvative assets - - - - - - -
Denvatre kabilities - - - - - - -
Non proflt non-unit linked derivatives
Denvative assets 2 - - - - - -
Derivative labdilies - - - - - - -
With-profits derivatives
Denvaiive assets 62 {246) 52} (85} (24) {3) [430)
Denvative fiabilities {55) 271} {122} (111} {54) {13) {571)
Total 9 {537) {174} {196} {78) {16) {1 001)
Net shareholder derivatives cash flows - - - - - -
Net non profit non-unit linked derivatives cash flows - 2 - - - 2
Net with-profits derivalives cash tlows 8 3 (4] 1] {1} El
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18 Reinsurers’ share of contract habilihes

Legal & General Assurance Society lmited
Report and Accounts 2011

Non profit With- Unit Total
non-unit profits linked
linked
201 201 201 201
Notes £m £m £m £m
Relnsurers' share of
Insurance confract iakilities 24 28212 1 8 2821
Invastment contract ichidities 25 - 11 1,465 1676
Relnsurers' share of contract liabflities 28,212 12 1473 29,897
Non profit With- Urut Total
non-unit profits Enked
linked
2010 2010 2010 2010
Notes £m £m £m £m
Reinsurers’ share of
Insurance contract habiities 24 25176 1 7 25184
Investment contract kabilities 25 ~ - 1106 1106
Relnsurers’ share of contract liabllities 25,176 1 1113 26,290
Non profit wWith- Und Total
non-urst profits Enked
linked
1 Jan 2010 1 Jan 20010 1 Jan 2010 1 Jan 2010
Notes £m £m £rn &m
Reinsurers’ share of
Insurance contract iabilihes 24 22187 | 5 22193
Investment contract labilifies 25 - 1 604 605
Relnsurers’ share of contract fiabilities 22187 2 409 22798
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19 Deferred tax asset / (liability)

The deferred tax bolances are as follows

Legal & General Assurance Society umited
Report and Accounts 2011

Asat 31 Asal 3l Asatl

Deceomber Cecember January

20M 2010 2010

£m £m £m
Deferred fax asset n7 252 399
N7 252 399

Deferred tax assets and (fabifhies) have been recognised/(provided) for the following types of femporary differences and unused {ax losses The

movement In these balances dunng the year i as follows

Net tax Net tax

asset Tax {charged)/ Tax assel

asatl crediled to (charged)/ as ot 31

January the income cradited to December

20m statement aquity 20m

£m £m £m £im

Unrealised gains on investments {125) 205 - 80
Excess of depreciahon over caprtal allowances k1 - - 39
Expenses 3 {(2) - 129
Tax losses 205 (137) - 48
Other 2 {1) - 1
Deferred tax asset/{llablliities) 252 45 - nz

Included in the amounts credited/{charged) to Income and equity In 2011 15 £{2)m relating to the change in UK corporatton tax rate from 28% to

26%1n Apnl 2011 and to 25% in Apnk 2012

Net tax Net tax

asset Tax (charged)/ Tax asset

asat credited io credited/ as at 31

January the income {charged} to December

2010 statement equity 2010

£m £&m £m £m

Unrealsed gans on investments (18} {107} - {125)
Excess of depreciation over capital allowonces 40 n - 39
Expenses 143 {12) - 131
Tax losses 233 {28) - 205
Other 1 1 - 2
Detened tax assets/(llabilities) 399 (147} - 252
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19 Deferred tax asset / (liability) (continued)

Unrecognised deferred tax assats

The Company has the following unrelieved tax losses comed forward as at 31 December 2011 Mo detferred tax asset has been recognsed in
respect of these tax losses as at 31 December 2011 or 31 December 2010 as it 15 probable that there will be ne suitable 1axable profits emerging in
future pencds against which 1o reheve them Relief for these tax losses will only be recognised if 1f bacomes probable that suitable taxable profits
will anse in future pencds The potential defered tax asset unrecognised as at 31 December 2011 15 £15m {2010 £15m)

Gross Tax
Gross Tax Gross Tax 1 Jon 1 Jen
201 2m 2010 2010 2010 2010
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Tax losses In respect of equity and property assels 77 15 77 15 77 15
Unrecognilsed delerred tax asset 77 15 77 15 77 15
20 Income tax
1 Jan
Income Tax Recoverable 20m 2010 2010
£m £m &m
Tax payable within 12 months (32) - -
Tax due after 12 months’ a2 - -
Income tax recoverable 50 - -
'£82m relates 1o tax recoverable in respect of EU claims 1 Jan
tncome Tax Llabliities 2011 2010 2010
£im £m £m
Tax due within 12 months - 140 123
Tax due affer 12 months - - -
Income tax liabilities - 140 123
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21 Other assets

Legal & General Assurance Society Umiled
Report ond Accounts 201t

Shareholder Non profit With- Uniy Total
non unit profits nked
linked
2m 20m 201 201 M
£m £Em £m £m £m
Reinsurance recevables 3 10 - - 13
Accrved interest and rent - - 30 Al 21
Prepayments and accrued income 14 16 - - 30
Other receivables ' 17 639 70 36 762
Other assets 34 645 100 127 928
Due wathun 12 months 911
Cue aiter 12 months 15
Shareholder Non profi! with- Urwt Total
non-unit profits nked
inked
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
£m £m £m £m £m
Rersuronce recewvables 2 13 - - 15
Accryed interest and rent 1 - 42 87 130
Prepayments and accrued iIncome 16 15 - - 31
Other recevables ' 8 903 80 &0 1051
Other assets 27 931 122 147 227
Due within 12 months 1215
Due ofter 12 months 12
Shareholder Non profit With- Urst Total
non-unit profits inked
inked
1 Jan 1 Jan 1 Jan ¥ Jan ¥ Jan
0i0 2010 2010 2010 2010
£Em Em £m £m £m
Rensurance recevables - 9 - - 9
Accrued interest and rent 2 7 39 74 122
Prepayments and accrued income 12 13 - 1 26
Other recevabies ' 7 1233 41 42 1323
Othet astets 21 1262 80 17 1 480
Due vatiin 12 months 1472
Due after 12 months 8

Ciher recevables includes £522m {2010 £807m) due from Group companies
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22 Cash and cash equivalents

Legal & General Assurance Society Umited
Report and Accounts 2011

Shareholder Non profit With- Unit Total
non-unit profits linked
linked
201 23] 2m 2m 20M
£m £m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand ' 124 22 52 192 3%0
Cash equivalents 13 2 422 04 X 1]
Cash and cash equivalents 255 24 474 1098 2081
Shareholder Hon profit With- Urat Total
nor-urit profits Enked
inked
2010 2010 2010 2010 210
£m £im £m £m £m
Cash ot bank and in hond ' 284 26 58 200 548
Cash equivalents @5 2 700 858 1655
Cash and cash equivalents 379 28 758 1058 2223
Shareholder Non profit With- Urut Tolal
nor-unit profits inked
Einked
1 Jan 1 Jan i Jan 1 Jon F fan
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
£m £m £m £m Em
Cash at bank and In hand' 5 m 34 153 191
Cash equivalents 84 10 925 877 1 896
Cash and cash equivalents 89 9 959 1030 2087
' included in the above are cash balances held in trust of £21m {2010 £274m)
23  Share capital and share premium
Number 1 Jan
of shares won 2010 010
000 Em £m £m
Issued share capital
Fully paid ordinary shares of £1 each 201 420 201 0 200
Share premium 1049 1049 1049

There 1s one closs of ordinary shares All shares issued cany equal voting nghis  There has been no change in the authonsed share capital dunng the

year

The holders of the Company’s ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared and are entiled to one vote per share al shareholder

meeiings of the Company
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24 Insurance contract habilihes
() Analysis of insurance contract liabllities
Gross  Relnsurance

Gross  Rensurance Gross Reinsuronce 1Jon 1 Jan

2011 2011 20%0 2010 200 2010

Notes &m £m £m am £€m £m

Participating insurance contracts an 8,554 (4} 9183 [8)] 2,198 (4]
Naon-parficlpating insurance confracts’ o 31021 (28,220) 28,093 (25,183) 24987 (22192)
General insurance contracts 3 - 3 - 3 -
insurance confract liabillties 39578 {28,221) 37279 (25184) 34188 (22,193)

1 Excluding Generat Inswance contracts

During the year the Company entered into prospective reinsurance arongements which resuited in g profit of £173m 2010 £137m) This
profit has been reflected in the statement of comprehensive Income for the year

{li} Expacted Insurance contract llabllity cash lows
Date of undiscounted cash flow

Over Carrying

0-5 yoars S-15yean  15-25 yeors 25 years Tota) vale

As at 31 Dacember 2011 £m $m £m [ &m £m
Participating Insurance contracts 5,338 2,841 761 309 9,247 8,554
Non-participating Insurance contracts 8,308 16,204 13,686 16,631 54,829 23,069
General Insurance conlracts - - - - - -
Insurance contract liabilities 13,644 19,045 14,447 16,940 64,076 31,623

Date of undiscounted cash flow

Over Camying

O-5 yaars &1byscis 1525 yeon 2Syears Totch value

As at 31 December 2010 &m &m €m £m €m £m
Participating Insurance contracts 5755 3515 973 320 10,563 9123
Non-participating Insurance confracts 8M3 16 900 13.551 15755 54278 26,858
General insurance contracts - - - - - -
Insurance contract labilities 13,768 20415 14,524 16,075 64781 35981

Date of undiscounted cash flow

Qver Canying

05 years 5-15 years 15-25 yaars 25 ysans Total value

As ct 1 January 2010 £m £m £m €m £m €m
Participating Insurance contracts 5495 3829 1,067 floe) 10940 9142
Non-particlpating insurance contracts 7077 14,577 12.442 15,300 49,395 23764
General insurance contracts - - - - - -
Insurance contract liabilities 12771 18406 13,509 15,669 60355 32,906

Insurance contract undiscounted cash flows are based on the expected dote of settlement

Armounts under unit inked conitracts are generally repayable on demand and the Company is responsible for ensuring there s sufficient
liquidity within the asset porffallo to enable Habllitles to unit Inked policyholders o be met as they fall due However the terms of funds
Investing In less liquid assets permit the deferral of redemptions for predefined periods In circumstances where there are not sufficlent liquid
assets within the fund to meet the level of requested redemptions Accordingly wnit lIinked liabilities have been excluded from the table
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24 insurance contract kabilities (continued)
(il Movement! In participating insurance contract liabllilies
Gross Reingurance Gross  Reinsurance
2011 2011 2010 2010
Notes £m &m &m £m
As ot 1 January 2,183 {n Q198 [4)]
New ligbllities in the year 353 - 473 -
Uabllities discharged In the year 1,418) - (1.257) -
Unwinding of discount rates 78 - 62 -
Effect of change In non-econoric assumptions 28 (26) - 45 -
Eftect of change In econemic assumptions 28 357 - 657 -
Other 17 - 5 -
As at 31 December 8,554 (1} 2183 Q)]
Expected to be settled within 12 months (net of relnsurance) 1,355 - 1231 -
Expected to be settied after 12 monthis (nef of relnsuronce) 7,198 - 7951 -
(iv) Movement in non-paicipating insurance contract liabillties
Gross Reinsurance Gross  Relnsurance
201 2011 2010 2010
Notes em §m £m £€m
As at 1 January 28,093 (25,183) 24 987 22 192)
New labllities in the year 2,459 2,615) 2,088 219N
Liablitles discharged In the yeor {1,551) 1,502 1.354) 1375
Unwinding of discount rates 1,261 (1,211} 1226 {1,158)
Effect of changs in non-economie assumptlons 28 392 283 (145) 132
Effect of change In economic assumptlons 28 1,i75 {1,150) 1298 {1175)
Other (24) 154 &) 24
As at 31 December o (28,220) 28,093 (25183
Expected to be settled within 12 months (net of reinswrance) 251 137
Expected to be settied after 12 menths (net of reinsurance) 2,550 2,773
25 Investment contract liabilities
() Analysis of Inveshment contract liabliities Gross  Reinsurance
Gross  Reinsurance Gress Reinsurance 1 .Jan 1.4on
2011 201 2010 2010 2010 2010
Notes &m &m €m Em & £m
Participating investment contracts 5,040 - 5104 - 5005 [4}]
Non-participating Investment contracts any 25,183 (1,678) 25890 (1106) 23,480 604)
Investment contract liabilifies G 30,223 (1,676) 30995 (1 106} 28,485 {605)
Expected to be setited within 12 nnonths (het of relnsurance) 2,562 26462 2429
Expected to be settted after 12 months (net of reinsuronce) 25935 27227 25451
(D Movemaent In investment contract liabilities
Gross Relnsurcnce Gross  Reinsurance
011 2011 2010 2010
“m m £m £m
As at 1 Januery 30,995 {1,108) 28,485 (505)
Reserves in respect of new business 2,814 653 2,548 416>
Amounts pald on surrenders and maturities during the year 2,318) 3 (2995) 40
Investment return and retated benefits an 52 37 125
Management charges (259 - (2600 -
As at 31 December 30,223 {1.676) 30995 (1 106}
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25 Investment contract iabilihes (continued)
0ii) Non-participating Investment contract liability falr vatue hierarchy
Amortised
Total tovel 1 Lavel 2 tavel 3 cost
As at 31 December 2011 &m Sm £m £m $m
Non-paricipating Investment contracis 25,183 25,183 - - -
Amextised
Total Lovel 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 cost
As at 31 December 2010 £m £m £m £m £m
Non-paricipating investment contracts 25891 25891 - - -
Amortised
Total Lovel 1 Level 2 Level 3 cost
As at 1 January 2010 £m £&m £m £m oM
Non-participating investment confracts 23,480 23480 - - -
There hove been no signiflcant transfers between any of the levels
(iv) Expected Invesiment contract llabllity cash flows
Date of undiscounted cash flow
Cwver Canying
0-5 years 5-15yeoars  15-25 yeors 25 years Total value
As ot 31 Decomber 2011 £m &m £m £m sm &mn
Participating Invesiment confracts 220 2 591 886 73 5,751 5,040
Date of undiscounted cash flow
Over Carrying
0-5 yeors 5-15 years 15-25 years 25 yaars Total value
As at 31 Decembear 2010 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Particlpating investment contracts 2269 2944 1196 102 6511 5104
Dote of undiscounted cash flow
Over Carrying
G5 years 515 years 1525 years 25 years Totol value
As at 1 January 2010 £m £m £m £m £m €m
Participating Investment contracts 2243 2982 1365 142 6732 5,005

Investment contract undiscounted net cash flows are based on the expected date of setiement

Amounts under unit linked contracts are generally repayable on demand and the Company s responsible for enswing there is sufficlent
liquidity within the asset portfello fo enable habiities to unit linked poticyholders to be met as thay fall due However the terms of funds
investing in less liguid assets permit the deferral of reciemptions for predefined periods In clrcumstances where there are not sufficlent liquid
assets within the fund to meet the level of requested redemptions  Accordingly unit linked fiabilities have been excluded from the reported
cash flows

A maturity andlysls based on the ecrliest contractual repayment date would present investrment contract liablliies as due on the earllest
perod of the table because policyholders can exerclse cancellation options ot their discretion In such o scenario the fiabllity would be
reduced due to the application of surrender penalties
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26 Unallocated divisible surplus
2011 2010
sm £m
As at 1 Joanuary 1,446 1.284
Transferred from the Income statement (354) 162
As at 31 December 1,092 1.446

It s Intended that the with-profits part of the LTF will be managed on the basis that it will remaln open to new business and therefore there is no
expectation of any distribution from the Inherlted esiate

27 Value of In-force non-participating contracts

(i) Movement in value of in-force non-participating contracts

201 2010

£m £m

As ot 1 January 337 328

Unwinding of the discount rates 19 18

Investment return a9 16

Other 72) Q25

As ot 31 December 205 337

Expected to be settled within 12 months 25 45

Expected to be settled after 12 months 180 292

(i) Expected net cash flows

Date of undiscounted cash flow

Over Carrying

0-5 years 5-15years 15-25 years 25 years Total vohie

As at 31 December 2011 £m sm sm £m &m €m

Value of in-force non-participating confracts 142 127 56 34 359 205
Dote of undiscountad cash flow

Ovar Carrying

-6 yaars 5-15 years 15-25 yadrs 25 years Totel value

As at 31 December 2010 £m £m £m m €m £m

Vatue of in-force non-participating centracts 231 242 103 53 629 337
Date of undiscountad cosh flow

Ovar Carnying

0-5 years 5-15yeors 1525 years 25 years Total value

As at 1 January 2010 €&m £m £m em £m £m

Value of in-force non-participating confracts 250 224 108 57 639 328

Value of in-force (VIF) non-participating undiscounted net cash flows are based on the expected date of realisation The VIF relates entirely
to Insurance contracts
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28 Long term insurance valuation assumptions

(i) Non-participating business

For its non-participating business the Company seeks to make prudent assumptions about its future experience based on cunrent market
conditions and recent experlence The approach used to set non-participating assumptions s genetally smllar 1o that used to determine the
assumptions used for FSA Reguigtory Peak 1 although the octual assumptions may someatimes ditfer frorm those used for reguiatory reporting
purpcses  These assumptions incorporate prudent morgins in excess of best estimale assumptions to reduce the possibillty of actual
experence belng less favourable than assumed

Valuation rates of interast and discount rates

The valuction interest rate tor each contract type Is based on the vield on the assets backing the contract adjusted for the risk that asset
proceeds are not recelved by the Company For some business this yield Is the gross redemption yvield on fixed Interest securities and the
unning yisid on variable interest securities For other business [t Is the Internal Rate of Return on the portfollo of backing assets

In 2011 the Company continued to hold an additional reserve to protect against the risk of an uplift In defaulfs in the curent seconomic
conditions and also maintained the tevel of the tong term default cllowance of 40bps (2010 40bps) per annum for unappioved securtties
backing non-profit business A5bps (2010 35bps) for unapproved securltles backing with-profit business and  for approved securlties and
swaps backing both with and non-profit business the allowance reratins at 3bps per annum (2010 3bps) and 27 3bps for properly For
unapproved securtles backing non-profit annuity business the credit default allowances equate to 61bps (2010 64bps) per annum when
exprassed over the duration of the assets held leading to an overall total default provision of €1 6bn (2010 €1 5bn) A similar methodology has
been used for assets backing withprofits business The Company believes the total default allowance Is prudent to cover all reasonably
foreseeable clreumstances

For eguity investments, the yield s based on the current dividend yleld odjusted for prudence

Mortailty and morbidity
Morality and morbicity assumptions are set with refetence to standard tables drawn up by the Continuous Mortallty Investigation Burequ
(CMIB) ot the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries Thase tables are based on industry wide maortality and morbidity experience for insured Ives

The malarity of Internal statistical Investigations are cared out at least annually to determine the extent to which the Company s experence
differs from that of the industry ond suggest appropriate adjustments which need to be made to the valuation assumptions

Persistency

The Company monitors its persstency experience and cares out detailed Investigations annually Persistency can be volatlle and past
experience may not be an appropriate future indicator The Company tites to balance past experience and futre conditions by making
prudent assumptions about the fuhre expected long térm average persistency levels

For nor-participating contracts where explicit persistency assumptions are not made prudence ks also Incorporated into the liablities by
ensuring that they are sufficlent to cover the mere onerous of the two scenarios where the policies elther remain in-force unfil maturty or
where they discontinue at the valuation date

Exponseos

The Company monltars its expense experlence and carles out detdlled Investigations regutany to determine the expenses incurred in writing
and adminkstering the different products and classes of business An allowance for expense infiafion In the future Is also made taking
account of both salary and price information

(il Participating business
For its participating business the Company seeks o estabilish Iis Labllities at thelr realistic valug In line with the requirements set out in FRS 27
Non-economic assumptions are set to represent the Company s best estimates of future experience

Economic assumptions

Realistic valugtion requires a market consistent economic model The model Is callbrated usng market data from a varety of market
soleces This enables assumptions to be determined for the term structure of risk-ree Inferest rates property and equity volatility Risk-free
Interest rates are determined with reterence to the gilt-yleld curve on the valuation date increased by 10bps

Property volatillty is set with reference to historic voriations In property prices  Equity volatility | set so that the mode! reproduces observed
market prices of raded equity derivatives Conelations between asset classes are based on historic data
Each Investment scenarle contains a consistent set of assumptions for investment returns and infiation

Future bonuses

Future reversionary and terminagl benuses are consistent with the bonus policies set out in the Company s Principles and Practices of Financlal
Management
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28  Long term insurance valuation assumphons (conhnued)

Value of in-force for non-participating businass

The Company crectes an osset for the expected value of future profits arising on non-participating contracts written In the with-peofits part of
the Company LTF

The economic assumptions used to calgulate the value of these profils are consistent with those used to calculate liabilihes for with-profits
business, with the addition of a liquidity premium In respect of assets backing non-participating annuity business Non-economic assumphons
represent bast estimates of expected future experlence on this business An explicit allowcance s mads for non-market risk

Guaranteed annuity options
The guarantees are valued on a market consistent basis The valuahion methodology alows for the correlation between interest rates and
the proportion of pelicyholders whao take up the option

Premlums - non-pariicipating business

For those contracts where the policyholder does not have the right ta vary the amount of the premlum paid, full credit is taken for the
premiums contractualty due at the valuation date For contracts where the policyholder has the option to vary the rate of premlum the
provision is taken as belng the higher of the amount calculated as if the pollcyholder continues fo make premium payments or alternatively
ceases to pay premiums altogether

Parsistency - non-participating business

Lapse rates are used In the voluation of certain classes of long term business Where this is the case the valuation persistency basis Is set by
applying a prudential margin over the best estimate assumptons See note 28 - table (i for the major products where lapse rates have been
used

For term assurance business the margin acts to increase the best esfimate lopse rate In the early port of a policy’s litetime (when It is being
freated as an asset) but to reduce the best estimate lapse rate Iater In the policy s lifetime (when It is freated as a liabllity) The crossover point
at which the margin changes direction |s assessed for broad product groups but applied at a policy by policy level Any liability to reinsurers
on discontinuance within the first four years from inception is allowed for explicitly in the cash flows using the valuation lapse basls together
with @ prudent allowance for clawback of commission from agents upon lapse

For unitised business the margin acts to elther Increase or decrease the best estimate lapse rates depending upon which approach results in
the higher liabllity The direction of the margin is assessed for unit life business and unit penslons business separately

A summary of the lapse basis for major classes of business as deflned by the requirements of the annual returns to the FSA is shown In note 28
table (i)

The following notes refer to note 28 - tables () and (i)

1 For praduct groups where liabliiies are positive the lower interest rate of 2 25% is used However, for product groups where llabilities are
negative the higher rate of 6 0% is used

2 The percentage of the table vary with the duration of the policy for first five years

3 For term assurance with critical iliness morkldity rates are assumed to deterlcrate at a rate of 0 5% pa for males and 0 75% pa for females
2010 0 50% pa for males and 0 75% pa for females) There Is an additive loading of 1% {2010 1%) for guaranteed term contracts post policy
duration 5

4 Table created by blending PCXADD with PNXAQO fables The base table to be used for BPA policles In deferment is PNMAOC up to and
including age 55 and PCMAQD for age 65 and above for males The identical method s applied to females using PNFADD and FCFADD

5 For vested annuities mortality rates are assumed to reduce according to CMIB s mordality improvement model, CMI 2002, with the following
parameters

Males Long Term Rate of 2% pa {2010 2% p a ) up to age 85 tapering 1o 0% at 120

Females Long Term Rate of 15% pa (2010 15% p a)up to age 85 tapering to 0% at 120

For certain annuities, a further allowance is made for the effect of initial selection
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28 lLong term insurance valuation assumptions (conhnued)

The table below sets out the current valuation assumptions used fo establish the long term liabliitles for the Company Full disclosure of the
vatuation assumptions are set out in the Abshact of the Valuation Report contained within the FSA returms

The prncipat assumptions are

 Rate of inferest/discount rate

Legal & General Asswrance Society Limited
Report and Accounts 2011

2011 2010
Non-Parlicipaling Business.
Ute assurances 2 25%po and & 60%pa ' 2 25%pa and 7 &%pa !
Persion assurances 2.25%pa and 6 60%pa | 250 -3 50% pa and 7 60f%pa |
Annulties In deferment 4 601% pa 4 975% pa
Annulties In deferment (RFI linked net rate
after allowance for inflation) 086% pa 1040% pa
Vestad annulties 4 601% pa 4975% pa
Vested annultles (RP1 linked net rate after
allowance for Inflation) -0.40 - 0 86% pa 040 - 1040% pa
Participating Business
Rlsk free rate (10 years) 223% pa 378% pa

Future bonuses

UK Equity voiatility (10 year option temn)
Property volatiiity

(1) Mostality Tables

Deotermined stochastically In line
with bonus policy as stated In
the PPFM

27 2%

15 0%

2011

Determined stochastically In line
with borws polley as stated In
the PPFM

262%

15 0%

2010

Non-Participating Business

Nondinked Indiidual term assurances

- Smokers

- Non-smckers

- Smgker status unknown

Nondinked individual term assurances with terminal iliness
- Srnokers

- Non-smokers

Nordinked Individual tesm assurances with critical illness
- Smokers

- Non-smokers

Other nondinked non profit life assurances

Annuties In deferment

vested annuities®

- Bulk purchase annuifies

- Other annulties

78% TMSO0/TFS00 Sel 5
0% TMNOO,/TFNOO Sel 5
83% TMOO/TFO0 Sel 5

90% - 112% TMS00/TFS00 Sel 52
85% - 115% TMNOO/TFNDO Sef 52

91% - 101% CIBT93M/F Uit Comb’®
57% - 67% CIBT93M/F Utt Comb’
100% of A47/70 ultimate tablas
82 5% - 89 4% PNMAOO/PNFAOC"

84 3 - 90 4% PCMADD/PCFALOD
62 2% - 115.4% PCMAQO/PCFAQD
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116% TMS00 / TFS00 Sel 5
136% TMNOO / TFNOO Sel 5
103% TMOO / TFOO Sel 5

26 % TMS00 / TFS00 Sel 5
93% TMNOQ / TFNOO Sel 5

99% CIBT9IM / F Ult Comb?
63% CIBTO3M / F Ult Comb?
100% of A67/70 ultimate tables
88 - 92% PNMADO/PNFACD

89 - 93% PCMAQO/PCFADO
55 - 86% PCMADO/PCFADO
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28 Llong term insurance valuahon assumptions (continued)

(il Persistency - non participating businaess (continued)
2011 Average lapse rate for the policy years

1-5 610 1t-15 16 -20

Product Y % % %

Level term 139 92 56 29
Decreqsing term 140 o3 &0 55

Accelerated critical liness cover 217 11 53 50

Pensions term 130 85 54 51

Whole of Life (conventional non-profit) ae 19 10 0o
Savings endowment (unitised with-profity 0o 14 16 40
Target cash endowment {unitised with-profits) 0o 38 30 24
Savings endowment (unit linked) oo 14 16 40
Target cash endowment {unlt linkad) oo 36 30 24
Bond (unitised with-profits) 10 20 23 18
Bond unit lInked) 26 59 34 33
Individual pension regular premium (unifised with-profits) 14 13 13 13
Individual pension reguigr premium (unit linked) 24 17 16 16
Group pension reguiar premium (unitised with-profits) 22 23 21 21

Group penslon regular premium (unit Inked) 26 2.3 1.4 14
Trustee Investment Pign reguier pramium (unitised with-profits) 13 13 13 1.3
Trustee Investment Plan regular premium unit linked) 13 13 13 13
Incividiual pension single premtum {unitised with-profits) 35 34 34 34
Indhdual penslon single premium (unit linked) 44 38 29 29
Group pension single premlum (unitised with-profits) 109 109 {2 109
Group penslon single premium (unit linked) 67 &7 67 67

Trustae Investment Plan single premium (unitised with-proflts) 68 56 38 38
Trustee Investment Man single premium (unit linked) &8 56 a7 37

2010 Avercge lapse rate for the policy years

1.5 6-10 1-15 1620
Product % % % %
Level term 139 94 60 31
Decreasing term 141 @5 .Y 60
Accelerated critical liness cover 212 107 85 52
Penslons term 127 85 60 56
Whole of Ufe {conventionat non-profit) 41 19 09 Q0
Savings endowment (unitlsed wlith-profit) [o]4] 17 22 44
Target cash endowment (unltised with-profits) 32 32 32 26
Savings endowment (unlt linked} 00 17 22 44
Target cash endowment (unit linked) 32 32 32 26
Bond (unitised with-profits) " 20 25 24
Bond (unlt linked) 26 463 39 35
Individual pension regular premiurn (unitised wlth-profits) 12 11 1M 11
Individual pension regular premlurm {unit lInkec) 22 16 14 14
Group pension regular premlum {unitisad with-profits) 21 21 20 20
Group pernsion regular premium {unit linked) 21 19 13 13
Trustee Investiment Plan regular premium (Wnitlsed with-profits) 14 14 14 14
Trustee Investrent Plan reguiar premium ¢unlt linked) 13 13 13 13
Individudl pension single premium (unitlised with-profits) 34 33 32 32
Individual pension single pramiurn (unit Inked) 40 s 27 27
Group pension single premlum (unitised with-profits) 112 nza 112 1Mz
Group pension single premlum (unit inked) 76 76 746 76
Tiustee Investment Plan single premium (unitised with-profits) b4 53 38 g
Trustee Investrnent Plan single premium (unit linked) 68 58 43 43

Endowmant reserve

The endowment reserve has been set taking reasonable account of an assessment of the expected future population of complaints the
expected uphold rate for these complaints, the patential impact of any Financlal Cmbudsman Service decisions on referred complaints and
the average compensation per complaint

Quarseqs business

In calculating the long term business provisions for international long term business operations local actuarial tables and interest rotes are
used
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29 Borrowings

Borrowings have no set repayment dates and are in pounds sterling  The interest rate is set 1% above the base rate (0 5%) and this is deemed
to be an amms length rate The borowlngs are carried at amaorhsed cost In the balance sheet

30 Payables and other financial liabilities 1Jan
2011 2010 2010

Notes m &m £m

Cerivatve liabilifles 7 137 104 57
Other 397 377 315
Payables and cther financial liabilities 534 481 arz
Settied within 12 months 434 325 226
Seffled after 12 months 100 156 144

Cther includes future cormmission payments which have contingent setiement provisions of £170m (2010 £164m) This liability has been
determined using the net present value of the future commisslon which will be payable on fund values This valuation technigque uses
assumptions which are consistent with the Company's effective rate of Interest Investment return assumptions and persistency assumptions
used in other valuations but it is not determined by reference o published price quotations

The frall commission liakillty ks the present value of future trall commission on new business Trall commission s amortised over a perled
representing the discounted mean term of the trall commission cashflows This Is currently 13 years for life business and 21 years for penslons
business The undiscounted value which Is expected ta be paid at maturity in respect of such commission is £247m (2010 £234m)

Payables and other financlal llabllities setiled after 12 months are expected to be seitled within five years with the exception of derivative
llabilities as disclosed in Note 16

Fair value hlerarchy

Amortised

Total Leval 1 Lavel 2 Leval 3 cost

As ot 31 December 2011 £m £m &m sm &m
Derivative liabllities 137 22 112 3 -
Other 397 18 - 170 209
Payables and ather financial liabilities 534 40 12 173 209
Amortised

Total Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 cost

As at 31 December 2010 & £m £m €m £m
Derlvative liabilities 104 22 a2 - -
Other 377 - - 162 215
Payables and other financial liabllties 481 22 a2 162 215
Amortisad

Total Loved 1 Lovel 2 Lavel 3 cost

As at 1 January 2010 £m &m £m &m &m
Derivahve liabilties 57 ¢ 48 - -
Other 315 - - 147 168
Payables and other financial llabilities 372 ? 48 147 168

Trail commissions are modelled using expected cash flows incorporating expected future persistency They have therefore been classified s
level 3 liabilities The entire movement in the balance has been reflected in the income statement during the year A reasonably possible
aitemnative persistency assumption would have the effect of Increasing or decreasing the liabllity by £5m (2010- £5m)

There have been no significant transfers between levels
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31 Otherliabilities

1 Jan

2017 2010 2010

&m £m £m

Accruals 116 109 100
Defened income liabllifias 328 372 434
Infra Group balances ! 1,706 880 950
Other payables 17 17 15
Other llabilties 2,167 1378 1499
Setted within 12 months 162 147 158
Settied after 12 months 2,008 123 1341

'See Note 39 (v) Related party fransactions

32 Contingent liabilihies, guarantees and indemnities

Provislon for the llabllitles arising under contracts with pollcyholders Is based on cerfain assumptions The varance betwean actual experence
from that assumed may result in those liabllities differing from the provislons made for them Liabllitles may also arlse In respect of clalims
relating to the interpretation of policyholder contracts, or the clrcumstances in which policyholders have entered Into them The extent of
these lloblities s influenced by a number of factors Including the actions and requirements of the FSA ombudsman rulings incustry
compensation schames and court judgments

The Company receives claims and becomes involved in actual or threatened litigation and regulatory Issues from time to fime The Company
ensures that it makes prudent provision as and when clrcumstances calllng for such provision become clear and that It has adequate capltal
and reserves 1o meet reasonably foreseeable eventualities The provisions made are regularly reviewed I Is not possible to predict with
cerainty the extent and the fiming of ths financlal impact of these claims litigation or issues

In 1975, Legal & General Assurance Soclety Lmited was requlred by the Institute of London Underwiters QLU) to exacuts the ILU fom of
guarantae in respect of policies issued through the ILU s Policy Signing Office on behalf of NRG Victory Reinsurance Company Lid (Victory), a
cempany which was then a subsidiory of the Company In 1990 Nederlandse Reassuranfie Groep Holding NV (the asets and liobilities of
which have since been assumed by Nederdandse Reassurantie Groep NV undet o statutory merger in the Netherlands) acquired Victory and
provided cn Indemnity to the Company agalnst any llablilty the Society may have as 4 result of the ILU s requirement, and the ILU agreed that
its requirement of the Soclety would not apply to policies written or renewed after the acquisiion Nederiandse Reassurantie Groep NV Is now
owned by Columbla Insurance Company a subsidiary of Berkshire Hothaway Inc Whether the Soclety has any llability as a result of the ILU s
requirement and if so the amount of Its potential kability Is uncertaln  The Soclety has made no payment or provision In respect of inls matter

33 Commitments

(i) Capital commitments

Authorised and contracted commitments by the LTF not provided tor In respect of investments, relating 1o propeny development and private
equily payable after 31 December 2011 are £194m (2010 £225m)

(i) Operating lease cc i s 20N 2010
£&m em

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

- Not later than 1 year 11 12

- Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 40 44

- Later than 5 years 74 83
125 139

Future aggregate minimum sublease payments expected to be recelved under operating subleasses :} 3

The future aggregate minimum lease recelvables under non-cancellable operatng leases are as follows

- Not later than 1 year 2 u]
- Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years é 1
- Later than 5 years - 2

8 3
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34 Subsidiary undertakings

tegal & General Assurance Soclety Umited

Report and Accounts 2011

The subsidiary undertakings of Legat 8 General Assurance Soclety Umited are listed below Each undertaling operates mainly In its country of
Incomoration and has only one class of Issued ordinary shares unless stated otherwise

Held directly by the Company

Nature of business

Incorpoiated In

City & Urban Developments Umited

Insurebeam Umilted

Legal & General (Meteor) Limited

Legal & General Direct (Holdings) Limited

Legal & General Estate Agencies Limited

Legal & General Insurance (FS) Lmited 2

Legal & General Intemational (Holdings) Umited

Legal & General Investment Management Dormant (Hotdings) Umited
Legal & General Penstons Umited

Legal & General Professional Tnust Sendces Limited

Holding Company
Holdling Cormpany
Domant Company
Dormant Company
Holding Company
Insurance Company
Holding Company
Non-trading
Insurance Company
Insurance Comparny

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Englond & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales

Legal & General Retall (Holdings) Umited Holding Company England & Wales
Legal & General Sheltco (No 1) Limited Bomant Company England & Wales
Naotionwide Lite Umited Insuranc e Company Englard & Wales
The Cavendish Land Company Umited Investment Holding Company England & Wales
Legal & General UL Feeder Company Jersey Umited Property Company Jarsey

Legal & General Trustees Limited Domant Company Englang & Wales
Held indirectly through subsidiary undertakings Nature of business Incorporated in
Banner Intemahonal Holdings BV Domant Company Netherlands
Banner Lte Insurance Company Limited Domant Company England & Wales
Bridge End Computers Limited Domnant Company England & Wales
Commercial Intemational Lite Company SAE * Life Insurance Egypt

Glanfield Secuites Umited Non-trading England & Wales
Infoplacement fr Management Company France

Key Consultants Mortgages Natlonwlde Umited

Key Mortgage & Property Limited

Key Surveyors Nationwide Umited

Legal & General Holdings (France)

Legal & General Asset Management {France)

Legal & General Bank (Fronce)

Legal & General Deutschland Service-GmbH

Legal & General Drect Limited

Legal & General Finance Eurcpe BV

Legal & General Gl Computer Services Umited

Legal & General Healthcare Umlted

Legal & General International Umited

Legal & General Investment Trust Umited

Legal & General Nedertand Beleggingen BY

Legal & General Nederlaond Explolitatie Mootschoppl] BV
Legal & General Nederland Levensverzekerng Maatschappij N V
Legal & General Nederdand Vasigoed Maatschappl BV
Legal & General Overseas Holdings BV

Legal & General Overseas Holdings Umited

Legal & General Retall (Holdings) Limited

Legal & General Shellco (No 1) Umited

Ltegal & General Suvaying Services Umited

Legal and General (France) SA

Legal et General Risques Divers (France)

Southgate Associates Umited

Trdingham Housing Limited

Legal & General investrent Trust Limited

Winstaniey 1 Limited

Winstonley 2 Unuted

Foxfield Estates Lmiled

Legal & General UK Property Income Fund Jersey Limited

Non-trading
Leasehold Property
Non-frading
Holding Company
Investrment Company
Financlal Senvices
Financial Services
Dormant Company
Domant Company
Dormant Company
Dormant Company
Holding Company
Non-trading
FInanclal Services
Real Estate

Long term business
Real Estate

Holding Company
Helding Company
Holding Company
Darmant Company
Survaying Services
Ufe Insurance
Insurance Cormnpany
Dormant Company
Domant Company
Domant Company
Holding Company
Property Company
Non-tfrading
Property Company

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
France

France

France
Germnany
England & Wales
Netherlands
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Netharands
Netherands
Netheriands
Netherlands
Netherlands
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
France

France

England & Wales
Englond & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Englond & Wales
England & Wales

1 Legal & General Direct (Holdings} Limited has both Ordinary A and Ordinary 'B' shares In Issue  All shares are held by Lega!l and General

Assurance Soclety Umited

2 Legal & General Insurance Umited has both Ordinary and Preference shares in issue Al shares ore held by Legal and General Assuance

Soclety Umnited

3 Legal and General Assurance Soclety Umited has an Indirect holding of 55% of the Issued shares of Commaecial International Lite

Company SAE

Urless stated above all subsidiarles are 100% owned and all have o 31 December financial year end
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35 Parent companies and fellow subsidianes

The immediate parent company of Legal and General Assurance Society Umited is Legal 8 General insurance Holdings Umited ¢ company
incorporated In England and Wales The ultimate holding company for both of those entities is Legal & General Group Flc The results of Legal
& General Assurance Soclety Umited are Included in the Legal & General Group Plc s consolidated financlal statements and therefore the
Company does not prepare consolidated financial statements These accounts therefore provide Information about Legal & General
Assurance Society Umited as an individual underfaking Coples of the accounts of the ultimate holding company Legal & General Group
Pilc are available, at the Registered Offce ©One Coleman Steet London EC2R 5AA on the group webslte at
www legalandgeneralgroup com or from the Company Secretary

36 Investment vehicles

The Company has the following significant investment holdings which have been Included as Investments designated as FVTPL

Company name tncorporated in % equily shares held
Engtish Cities Fund England & Wales 375
Meteor Industrial Parmership England & Wales 4995
The Lelsure Fund Unit Trust England & Wales 246
The Waerington Retall Unit Trust Jersey 80
Arlington Business Parks Unit Trust Jersey 3951
Bracknell Property Unit Trust Jersey 5038
Northampton Shopping Centre Unit Trust Jersey 100
Central St Glles Unit Trust Jersey 50
Edling Shopping Centre Unit Trust Jersey 100
Chineham Shopping Centre Unit Trust Jersey 100
UK Logistics Unit Trust Jersey 42 68
ARC Property Fund Jersey 80
Gresham Street Unit Trust Jersey 100
Bucklersbhury House Unit Trust Jersey 100
Performance Retail Unit Trust Jersey 66 66
Legal & General Life Fund Umited Partnership England & Wales 100
The Cavendish Land Company Limted England and Wales 100
Sauchiehall Trustee Umited Scotland 100

37 Share based payments

Legal & Generat Group Ple (the Group) grants share based payments o employees within the Group  The Group recognlses an expense for
these payments measured Indlrectly by reference fo the fair value of the equity insfruments granted The expense is recognised over the
vesting period as the services are received The relevant company has recharged its share of this expense with reference to the benefits it
recelves from the employees The full disclosures required by IFRS 2 are provided in the consolidated Group IFRS financlal statements

The total expense recharged to the Company In relatlon to share based payments was £9 2m (2010 £9 1m)

38 Directors' emoluments

201 2010

£'000 £000
Short-term employee benefits 1,219 144
Soclal security costs 198 197
Post-employment benafits 169 168
Ctherlong-tetm benefits - -
Termination beneflis - )
Share-based incentive awards 1,048 1.098
Aggregate emolurments 2,634 2877
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38 Directors’' emoluments (continued)

These figures represent the portion of the directors emaoluments allocated in respect of fheir services to the Company No tees were paid by
the Company to the directors Directors are not employees of the Company but thelr services are reflected in a management chorge levied
by the parent Emoluments relate to salarles and performance bonuses

Retiement benefits are accruing to 6 directors under a defined benefit pension scheme Two diectors are members of o defined
confiibution pension scheme and the value of the apportioned compony contribution In the year Is £27 943 2010 £22 174)

Share based incentive awards includes shate options vested duzing the year Comparative figures have been updated to reflect this
addiiondal disclosure

Highest paid director
201¢% 2010
£000 £000
Emoluments &78 797
Defined benefit pension scheme accrued at end of year® 27 25

* Accrued pension represents the amount of the annual pension that would be payable to the director when he reaches normal pension age

Blrectars’ emotuments for the Group durng the year have been attributed to the Company on the basis of the ime spent on Company
business by each Director

Directors loarns
At 31 December 2011 there were no loans to directars (2010 none)

Directors’ transactions and arrangements
Neo director had any material inferest In any confract or arangement of significance in relation to the business of the Cormpany during 2011

3% Related party transactions

{h Key management personnel
Key management persannel represented by the members of the boord of directors are listed on page 3 Director remuneration |s discussed
In detail in note 38

(i} Relnsurance

As at Decermber 2011 the Company held a reinsurance asset of £26.430m with respect to reinsurance ceded to Its subsidiary Legol &
General Pensions Limited 2010 £23,386m) and of £1,512m (2010 £938m) with respect to relnsurance ceded 1o an other related party Legal &
Ganeral Asswrance Pensions Management} Umlted

The Company pcid £2.872m (2010 £2,045m) of relnsurance premium recelved £205m (2010 £145m) of relnsurance commission and recetved
£1.676m (2010 £1 124m) in claims from Legal & General Pensions Limited on the business reinsured

With regards to its fransactions with Legal & General America Inc @ related party belonging 1o Legal & General Group PLC the Company
accepled £67m (2010 £103m) of relnsurance premium for reinsuring term life business pald £18m In commission (2010 onil) recelved £11m
{2010 €nil) In investiment Income and pald £28m (2010 £nlil) in cloims A relnsurance fiabliity of £148m (2010 €124m) Is held to cover this
buslness

(ilh Investments in Group uni trusts

The Company held £4,605m 2010 £4,301m) in investmenits in unlt trusts confrolled and managead by Group companles that classify as other
related parties In 2011 the Company made a £533m loss (2010 €448m profit) from investing In those trusts

{v) Receivables

2011 2010
As at 31 December sm £m
from ultimate parent company & 4
From subsidiarles
- Legal & General Pensions Limited (ncl contingent loan) 224 596
- Other subsidiaries 57 54
From other related parhes
- Legol & General America Inc - funds withheld balance on relnsurance 132 163
- Other related partles 103 50
Total 522 897

None of the recelvables above are Impalred The company received £€22m (2010 £11m) of interest Income on the above recelvables

The confingent loan is owed to the Company s Shareholder Fund (SHF) and is interest bearing at variable rote of UBOR + 1% The Interest is
accrued monthly but seifled annually The repayment of the contingent loan and related Interest is sublect to a surplus arsing from the long
term business of Legal & General Pensions Umited LGPL) Where the surplus of LGPL is insutficient o cover the interest repayment In any year,
the unpaid portion of the Interest payment accrues to future years The outstanding loan balance currently stands at £216m (2010 £581m)
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39 Related party transactions (continued)
{v) Payables

20Mm 2010
As ot 31 December £m £m
To immediate parent company (Legal & General insurance Holdings Umited) 499 0
To ulimate parent company (Legal & General Group Ple treasury) 414 365
To subsldiaries
- Legal & General Overseas Holdings Umited 298 298
- Legal & General Shellco (No 1) Umited 107 107
- Legal & General Pensions Urnited 20 81
- Cther subsidiares 24 24
Te other related partles
- praperty investment vehicles 210 -
- other &4 5
Total 1,706 880
(v) Other income and charges

200 2010
Income due from related parties £m m
Income from cther related partles
- Legal & General Retail Investments (Holdings) Umited 43 41
Tota! income 43 a1

2001 2010
Charges dus to related parties £m £m
Charges due to parent companies
- interest charges 03 03
Charges due to other related parties
- Legal & General Investment Management (Holdings) Limited - investment management charges 61 &1
- Legal & General Parmership Heldings Umited 57 44
- Legal & General America Inc (mentioned under relnsurance) 18 -
- Interest charges 12 08
- other 7 7
Tolal charges 144 5 131

(wil) Dividends

The Company pald £500m (2010 £300m) in dividend to Its parent company Legal & General Insurance Holdings Limited and recelved
dividend from Its subsidiaries - £20m (2010 £80m) from Nationwlde Life Limited £42m (2010 £13m) from Legal & General International

(Holdings) Umited and £25k (2010 £21k) from Legal & General Inswrance Lmited

(viii} Guarantees

The Company has guaranteed to meet the liakliities of the following entities as they falf due Insurebeam Limited - up to £19m (2010 £19m)
Key Consuttants Mortgages Nationwlde limited - up o €42k {2010 £35k) Key Mortgage and Property Umited - up to £4m (2010 £4m) and

Legal & General Intemnational (Holdings) Umited - up to $166m (2010 £166m)
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40 Management of capital resources

The Company's tolal capital resources of £5 1bn {2010 £5 7bn) on an IFRS basis compnse equily holders capilal £4 Obn {2010 £4.3bn)
and unallocated divisible surplus £1 Tbn {2010 £1 4bn)

The Cormpany wntes a range of long term nsurance and investment business in the LTF This fund s segregated from the Company’'s
other assets The fund includes parlicipating (with-profits) business where policyholders and shareholders share in the nsks and rewards
and non-parhicipating (non profit) busness where the shareheolders receive the profits Capitalin excess of an amount required to
cover the iabilities 1s curently held both wathin and cutside of the Company LTF  This capital provides support for new and exishng non
profit business within the Company

Capltal management policies and objectives

The Company aims to manage ifs capital resources to maintan finanaal stiength policyholder secunty and relative external financial
strength ratings advantage The Company also seeks to maumise ifs financial flexibiity by mamtaining strong iquidity and by ullising o
range of altemative sources of capital Including equity semor debt and reinsuronce

Capital measures

The Company measures ifs capital on a number of different bases including those wihich comply with the regulatory framework within
wtuch the Company operates and those which the directors consider most appropnate for managing the business The measures used
by the Company are

* Accounting bases

Management use the pnmary financial statements prepared on an IFRS basis to manage capital and cash flow usage and to
determine dividend paying capacity

In addition the directors believe that the supplementary accounts to the Legal & General Group Plc report and accounts prepared
using EEV pnnciples provide an alternative view of the Company's long-term operatiens and the value of the business o sharehelders
Accordingly the Company's net asset value and total capital employed are alo analysed and measured on this basis and tom part
of the EEV Group accounts

* Regulatory bases

The financial shength of the Company 1s measured under local regulatory requirements [see below) Cne of these regulatoery
measures Individual Capital Assessment {ICA) measures capital using nsk based techniques and provides a measure of economic
capital

Basls of regulatory capital and comresponding regulatory capitat requb ts
Required capitai for the ife business 1s based on the rules of the FSA  The Company must hold assets in excess ot the higher of two
amaunts the first bemng calculated using the FSA rules (Pillar 1] the second being an economic capital assessment by the Company

which 1s reviewed by the FSA (Pillar 2 otherwse known as ICA)

The public Pilar 1 capital calculahon s calculated by applying fixed percentages 1o liabilhes and sums assured at nsk There are
further stress tests for participating liabilifies as measured in the Reatlistic Balance Sheet which may increase the required capital
The private Pillar 2 capital calculation s an assessment of the economic capital required to ensure that the company can meet its
Tabilities with a high ikelihood as they fall due  This is achieved by stochastic modeling and scenano testing  The result is reviewed
and may be modified by the FSA

The Cempany has not breached any regulatory capital requrements at any time dunng the year

Avallable regulatory capital resources

Capital resources avalable to meet the UK capital requirements are determined using FSA valuation rules The assel valuahon nules
are based on IFRS adjusted for both admissibility limits and specific valuation differences The Company's regulatory capital position
staterment in the table below sets out the different sources of capital held withun the Company The Company's total avalable capital
resources boased on the unaudited draftl FSA returns are £4 7bn (2010 £4 Pbn) of which £1 7bn {2010 £1 8bn) 1s held by the LIF

The total avalable capital resources of the Company's with-profits business of £0 7bn {2010 £1 Obn) are determined In acccordance
wath the realishc balance sheet rules prescibed by the FSA The capilal resources reflect the surplus in that part of the fund which 1s n
excess of any constructive obligathon to policyholders The liabilities within the consclidated balance sheet do not include the amount
representing the shareholders' share of future honuses However for capital reporting the shareholders® share is deducted from
capstal resources In the capital statement

Al 31 Decernber 2011 the realshe value of the UK parlicipating Babilhes was £13 6 bn {2010 £14 2bn) under the FSA redlishe capital
regime The excess of realistic assets over realishc latiihes was £0 7bn (2010 £1 0bn)

1 The FSA returns are auchted and filed subsequent to the finalisation of these financial staterments
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40 Management of capital resources (conhnued)
Table 1 - Regulatory capital posiion statement

UK non Share-
UK with. profit Total holders
oeofs  and sRC! lite eauity Total
As at 31 December 2011 Em £m £m £m £m
Ordinary shareholders equity outside the LTF - - - 2532 2532
Crdinary shareholders equity hetd in the LTF - 1441 144 - 144
Capital and reserves athributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company - 141 1am 2532 233
Adiusiments onto reguiatory basis
Unallocated divisible surplys 109 - 107 - 1M
Cther (345) (so1) (844) 457 (379)
Tota! avalloble capltal resovices 746 240 1686 2999 4 685
IFRS flability analysls
UK participating katilities on realistic bass
- Options ond guarantees 1153 - 1153 - 1153
- Other poficyholder obligations 12418 23 12 441 = 1241
Overseas participating kabxihes - - - - -
Unaflocated divisible surplus 10 - 1M - 1091
Value of in-farce non-parhcipating contracts (205) - (205) - {205)
Participating contract lablifties 14 457 x| 14 480 - 14,480
Unit inked non-participating life assurance llabiities 506 477 2.5 - 983
Non-hinked non-participating life assurance habilties 2102 27,936 30,038 - 30038
Unit Enked non-parhicipating investment contract iabilihes 8044 17139 25183 - 25183
General insurance liabiities - - - 3 3
Non-particlpating contract llabiilties 10 652 45 552 56 204 3 58207
UK non Shaore-
UK with- profit Total halders
eroffs  and SRC' lite eauity Tatal
As at 31 December 2010 £m £m £m £m £im
Ordinary shareholders equity outside the LTF - - - 2824 2824
Ordinary shareholders equity held in the LTF - 1352 1352 - 1352
Caplal and reserves attiibutable to equity holders of
the Company B 1352 1352 2824 4176
Adjustments onfo regulatory basis
Unallocaled divisible surplus 1,446 - 1 444 - 1 444
Other {4%3) {507) {1 000} 247 {753)
Tolat avallable caplial resources ?53 845 1798 30N 4 869
IFRS llabllity analysls
UK participating habilities on realistic basts
- Ophons and guarantees 748 - 748 - 768
- Other policyholder obligations 13 491 28 12519 - 13519
Overseas participating iabilites - - - - -
Unallocated divisible sumplus 1444 - 1444 - 1 446
Vvalue of In-torce non-parhicipating confracts {337) - {337) - (337)
Participating contract liabilities 15348 28 15394 - 153%%
Unit inked non-participating life assurance fiabiklies &02 7 359 7 961 - 7951
Non-inked non-parficipating fife assurance labifhes 2024 18108 20132 - 20132
Uit inked non-participating investment confract labiliies 84877 17 214 25891 - 25891
General insurance habilibhes - - - 3 3
Non-participating contract liablitles 11,303 42 6B1 53984 3 53987
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40 Management of capital resources (continued)

Availuble regulatory capital rescurce risks

The Company’s available copital resources are sensitive 1o change in market conditions due to both ehanges in the value of the
assets and o the effect that changes in investment conditons may have on the value of the labiies Capital resources are also
senstive to assumphons and expenence rekating to mortally and morbadity and o alesser extent expenses and persistency

The most sigruficant sensitivities anse from the tollowing tour nsks

) market sk in relahon to UK parhopaling business which would crystalise o adverse changes in the valve of the assets supporting
this business could not be tully reflected iIn payments to polcyholders because of the etfect of guarantees and ophons The capital
posihon of this business would afso detencrote if increases to the market cost of denvatives resulted iIn an increase In the iability for
guarontees and ophons in the reafishc balance sheet

{ market nsk in relation to the UK annuity business which would crystallise if the return from the fixed interest investments supporting
this business were lower than that assumed for reserving The majonty of the UK annuity bustness is reasssured 1o Legal & General
Pensions Limited

() mortabty nsk in relation to the UK annuily business whuch would crystalise if the meriality of annuitants improved mare rapicily than
the assumptions used for reserving

{~) moriality nsk in relahion to UK term assurance business which wouid crystalise f mortafity of tha ves insured was hugher than that
assumed possbly bacause of an epidemic

M ts In life busl regulatory copltal resources
The movement in the life business requlatory capital rescurces is shown in Table 2

Table 2 - Movements in life business regulatory capital resources

UK hon Shore

UK with profit Total holders Total
ofoflts and SRC Lite Equity Nfe

£m £m £m £m £m

As at 1 Janvary 2011 953 845 1795 Jon 4869
Effect of iInvesiment vanations (88) 34 {52) - (52)
Effect of changes in valuation assumphions 5 43 48 - 48
Changes in management poficy (4) - (4) - 4
New business (17) (74} (93) - (93}
Cash distnbutions - (190} {1%0) 190 -
Other tactors’ {103) 282 179 (2462) {83)
As at 31 December 2011 744 940 1488 2999 4485

UK non Share-

UK wilh- orofil Total holders Total

profits and SRC ule Equity ite

im Em £m &m £m

As at 1 janvary 2010 841 488 1 529 2748 4297
Eflect of nvestment vanations 210 76 284 - 285
Eifect of changes in valuation assumphons [41) 58 17 - 17
Changes in regulatory requirements - - - - -
New business 7) 7 (94) - {94)
Cash dismbutions - (150} {150) 150 -
Other factors' {40) 250 210 153 343
As at 31 December 2010 953 845 1798 3071 4,869

'Othet tactors i Shareholders equity Include movement in subsidianes valuation (FSA NBY basis) £206m {2010 £214m} payment of
dividend {£500m} {2010 [£300m)) movement In Inadmissable assets and valuation differences £nil {2010 £21m) and net movement in
profit and loss account £34m {2010 £218m)
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41 Assets analysis

The Company has categonsed its assets and hablilies in the followang disclosure in accordance with the level of shareholder exposure
to market and credit nsks The four categonsations presented are

« Unit linked

For unit inkad contracts there 1s a direct ink between the investments and the obligations Unit inked business 15 watten in both the
Company s LTF The financial nsk on these contracts is bome by the policyholders The Company 1s therefore not directly exposed to
any market nsk curency nsk or credit nsk for these contracts Detailled nsk disclosures have not been presented for unit inked assats
and liabilities

* Wih-profits

Paolicyholders and shareholders share in the nsks and returns of the with-profits part of the Company s LTF The return to shareholders on
virtually all parhcipating preducts is in the form of a transter to shareholders' equity which is analogous to a dividend from the
Company s LTF and 1s dependent upon the banuses credited or declared on policies In that year The bonuses are broadly based on
histone and current rates of retum on equity property and fixed iIncome secunties as well as expectahons of future Investment returns
with-profits also includes participating business in the France operation which shares smilar charactenshcs  The wath-profits
classification excludes unit inked contracts

= Non profit non-unit linked
Shareholders are exposed to the nsk and rewards of ownership of assets backing non profit non-unit knked business held within UK LTFs

» Shareholder
All other assets are classified as shareholder assets Shareholders of the Company are directly exposed to market and credit nsk on
thase assets

The table below presents an analysis of the balance sheet by category All of the quantitative nsk disclosures in Note 41 {Risk
management and control) have been provided using this categonsation

Non profit
non unit With- Unit

Sharehclder linked profits linked Total
As at 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m £m
Assels
Investment in subsickanes 1558 48 - - 1606
Purchased interest in long term businesses and other infangible assets 3 3 - - é
Plant and equipment 38 - - - 36
investments 2706 28 18419 24229 43782
Other operational assets’ 34 29 855 231 2,019 31939
Total assets 4,337 29,734 17 050 25248 77349
Liablities
Parhicipating contract liabilities - 23 14 457 - 14480
Non-participating contract habilihes 3 27 942 2102 26159 56204
Senior borrowings - - 8 - 8
Other labiihes 194 14958 453 &7 2702
Total liabilties 197 29,923 17.030 262486 73394

Neon profif
non unit With- Urut

Shareholder hnked profits nked Total
As at 31 December 2010 £m £m £m £m £m
Assels
Investment in subsidianes 1574 48 - - 1622
Purchased interest in long term businesses and other intangible assets 3 - - - 3
Plant and equipment 28 - - - 28
Investments 1963 0 17 544 25818 45355
Other operational assets ' 26 26 %05 262 13465 28558
Total assels 3594 26983 17804 27183 75544
Licbilities
Participating contract liabilities - 28 15348 - 15396
Non-participating contract liabilifies 2 24 945 2063 26977 53987
Senicr borrowings B - a8 - a
Other liabiities 207 1171 523 98 1999
Totai liabilitles 209 26144 17962 27075 71350

'Other operahonal assets 1s made up of mainly rensurance assets
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42 Risk management and control

This section describes the Company's approach to risk management It covers the overall approach that opplies to all dsks and
includes a detoiled review of rsks within the Comparny's key businesses

Risk management objectives

The Company's primary objective in undertaking sk mancgement activity s to manage risk exposures In Iine with sk appatite
minimising its exposure to unaxpected financial loss and imiting the potential for deviation from anticipated outcomes In this respect
a framework of limits and qualltative statements aligned with the Compony's risk appetite is in place for material exposures

Risk management approach

A significant part of the Companys business Involves tha occeptance ond management of risk The Company is exposed fo
Insurance morket credit liquidity and operotional rdsks ond operates a formal risk management framework to ensure that aff
significant risks are Identified and monaged The dsk factors mentioned betow should not be regarded as a complete and
comprehernsive statement of all potential rdsks and uncertainties

insuronce risk' exposure to loss arking from clfaims experence being different to that anticipated
Market sk exposure to loss as o direct or indirect result of luctuations In the value of or income from specific assets
Credit risk exposure 1o loss if another party {ails 1o perform its financial obligaticns to the Company

Uquidity dsk the risk that the Company though sotvent elther does not have sufficlent financial resources availoble to enable It to
meet its obligations as they fall due or can secure them only at excesstve ¢ost

COperational sk exposure to 1oss arsing from Inadequate or falled Infemal processes people systems or from extemal events

Management of risks
The Company seeks to manage Ifs exposures fo risk through control techniques which ensure that the reskduat risk exposures are within
accepioble tolerances agreed by the Board The key control techniques for the major categories of risk exposuse are summarsed In
the following sections

insurance risk

Insurance risk Is iImplicit in the Company’s surance business and arlses as a consequence of the type and volume of business wiitten
and the concentration of rsk in particular policles or groups of policies subject o the same risks A detalled review of the Company's
Inherent residudl risks associated with insurance products is included within the long term insurance rsks section of note 42 insurance
sk is managed wsing the following technigues

Policies and delegated authorities for underwriting pricing and reinsurance

The Company's Inswrance risk policy sefs out the cverall frarmework for the management of Insurance risk As part of the framework a
stucture of delegated pricing and underwriting authorties is In place Pricing 5 boased on assumptions such as mortality and
perstency which have regard to past experence and to frends Insurance exposures are limited through relnsurance Overaoll the
Company seeks 10 be comservative in Ity acceptance of Insurance rsks by establishing shict undenarting criteric and limits The
undarwiiting policy ks clearty documented setting out tisks which are unacceptatie and the terms applicable for non-standard rsks

Relnsurance ks wsed 1o reduce potential 1oss to the Company from individual large risks It may clso be used to manage caopltal or to
provide access to speciallst undenwriting expertise The Company mokes extenstve wuse of reimsurance for its Individual protection
business placing a propostion of oli risks meeting prescribed criteria

Resarving Policy

The Company has a docurmented reserving policy seting out the basis on which the liobilities are to be determined using statistical
analysls and cctuarial exparlence Policies are In ling with locally established actuanal techniques relevant regulation and legisiation
Further detdlis of the assumption setting process are included In note 28
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Market risk
The Company exposure to market fsk is Influenced by one or more external factors including changes In specified interest rates
financlal Instrument prices forelgn exchange rates and indices of prices or rates

Significant areas where the Company is exposed to these rsks are

= assets backing insurance and Investment contracts other than unit linked contracts
» gssets ond llabllities denominated In forelgn currencies and

= other financial assets and liabilities

The Company's market risk policy sets out the overall fromework for the maragement of market risk The policy Is relnforced by more
granular Investment pollcies for long term and other business which have due regard to the nature of llabllities and guarantees and
other embedded options given to policyholders

The Company manages market risk using the following methods

Asset liabllity matching
The Company monages its assefs and liabllifies In accotdance with relevant regulatory requirements reflecting the differing types of
liabilities It has In ecch business

For business such as immediate annultles which Is sensitive to interest rote rsk onalysls of the liablifles & undertaken 1o create a
portfolio of securlifies the value of which changes In line with the value of liobllities when interest rates change This type of analysis
helps protect profits from changing interest rates Interest rate risk cannct be completely eliminated due tc the nature of the liobilities
and early redemption options contained In the assets

For businesses where @ range of asset types including equity and property are held to meet liabilitles ihe Company uses stochastic
rnodels to assess the impact of o range of future retum scenaros on investment values and associated liabllities This allows the
Company to devise an Investment and with-profits policyholder bonus strategy which optimises returns fo Its policyholders over time
whillst limiting tha copltal requirements associated with these businesses The Company uses this method extensively in connection with
its with-profits business

Derivatives

The Company uses derivatives 1o reduce market risk The most widely used clerivatives are exchange-fraded equity futures and swops
The Company may use futures to facllitate efficient asset aflocation  In addition dervatives are used to improve asset liabllity
matching and 10 manage interest rate foreign exchange and Infiation risks 11 is the Company's policy that amounts at sk through
derivative transoctions are covered by cash or comesponding assets and that swaps ara collateralised to reduce counterparty
axposure

Interest rate risk
Interest rate tisk is the risk that the Compeony Is exposed to lower retums or loss as @ direct or Indirect result of fluctuations in the value
of of Income from speciiic assets and liabilities arlsing from changes in underlying interest rates

The Company Is exposad 1o Intetest rate risk on the Investment portfollo it malntains to meet the obligations and commitments under
Its non-linked Insurance and Investment controcts In that the proceeds from the assets may not be sufficient to meet the Company's
obligations to policyholders

To mitigate the rsk that guaranteas and commitments are net met the Company purchases financlal instruments which broadly
match the expected non-porticipating policy benefits payable by their nature anc term The composition of the Investment portfolic
Is govemed by the nature of the insurance or savings llabitities the expected rate of return applicable on each closs of asset and the
capital available to meet the price fluctuations for each asset class relative to the liabilities they support

Asset liability matching significantly reduces the Company's exposure fo interest rate sk Sensitivity to Interest rate changes s
Included in Tables & of Note 42

inflation risk

Inflation risk Is the potential for loss as a result of relative or absolute changes In inflation rates The Company is exposed 1o Inflation risk
In two specific areas

» Certaln non-inked contracts such as annuities may provide for future benefits to be pald taking account of changes in the level of
inflatton  Controcts In poyment may also Include on annual adjustment for movemnents In prices Indlces subject 1o an annual cap
The Company seeks to manage the sk of movernenss in price Indices through an appropriate Investment stategy Including the use
of Inflation swaps and

+ In writing long term business the Company makes assumptions regarding the future costs of product servicing  The assumptions
toke account of changes in price indices and the costs of employment with stress testing evaluating the effect of significant
deviations on the Company's capltal positlon

Currency risk

The Company Is potentially exposed to loss as o result of fluctuctions in the value of or income from assets denominated In foreign
currencles The Company manages its currency risk exposure In respect of long term business assets ond liabllities denominated In non
sterling curencies by backing obligations with investments in the same currency and through hedging using derivatives

The Company is nat directly exposed to risks on unit linked contracts Detalled rsk disclosures have not been presented for uni! linked
assefs ond llabilities
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Table 1 - Currency risk

Table | summanses the Company s exposure to foreign currency exchange nsk n stering

As ot 31 December 2013 Japanese Canrving
Evro  US Doflew Yen Other Steding value
Shareholder £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Investment in subsidiaries - - - - 1,558 1558
Purchased interest in long ferm businesses and other intangible assets - - - - 3 3
Plant and equipment - - - - 35 3
Investments 3z 510 43 31 2085 2706
Othe: operational assels 2 8 - 1 23 34
Total assets 3¢ 513 43 32 3705 42337
Uabiltles
Non-parhcipating contract iabilihes - - - - 4 4
Other fabufities - 402 - - (208) 194
Total liablilitles - 402 - - (204) 198

Non profit non-unht linked

Assels

Investment in subsidiaries - - - - 48 48
Purchased interast in long term businesses and other intangible assets - - - - 3 3
Investments - - - - 28 28
Other operahonal assets - - - - 29 655 29 455
Total cssets - - - - 29734 29734
Uabilities

Paricipating contract kabifities - - - - 23 23
Norn-participating contract kiabnbhas - - - - 27 942 27942
Other fabiihes - - - - 1958 1958
Total iabfiitles - - - - 29923 29923
With-profits

Assets

Investments s 1029 11 823 14238 1681%
Other operational assets - 7 - 3 21 23
Total assets 318 1036 411 824 14459 17050
Licbilties

Parhapating contract abilities - - - - 14,458 14458
Non-participating contract katuihes - - - - 2102 2102
S$emor borowings - - - - 8 8
Other kabibties 07N 300 2 3 174 452
Total abllities (7 300 2 3 16742 17030
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As at 31 December 2010 Jopanese Conrving
Eurc  US Dollar Yen Other Stering value
Shareholder £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Purchased interest in long term businesses and other intangible assets - - - - 3 3
Investment in subsicianes - - - - 1574 1574
Plant and equipment - - - - 28 28
nvestrments 30 97 - k¥ 1799 1943
Other operationa! assets 2 - - 8) 32 26
Total assets 32 o7 - 29 3 436 3594
Liabilitles
Norn-parhaipating contract iabilities - - - - 2 2
Other liabilihes 15 - - - 192 207
Total Nabilliies 15 - - - 194 209
Non profit non-unt linked
Assefs
Investment in subsidianes - - - - 48 48
Investments - - - - 30 30
Other operahonal assets - - - - 26905 26905
Tolal assets - - - - 26983 26983
Liabilitles
Paricipatng contract liabiihes - - - - 28 28
Non-parhicipating confract Tabilities - - - - 24945 24945
Other labiiities - - - - 1171 171
Total lfabilities - - - - 246144 246144
With-profits
Assets
Invastments 1426 ?14 505 797 13702 17 544
Other operahonal assels - 3 - - 259 242
Total assets 1626 N7 505 797 13961 17 806
Liabllities
Parhcipating contract iabifities - - - - 15368 15348
Non-participating contract iabilihes - - - - 2043 2063
Senior borrowings - - - - 8 B8
Other labilihes 450 204 - - {331) 523
Total liabilities 450 204 - - 17 108 17 962
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The Company § management of curency rlsk reduces shoreholders exposure to exchange rate fluctuations The Company s
exposure fo o 10% exchange movement In the US Dollar and Eure on an IFRS basls net of hedging activities Is detalled in Table 2

Table 2 - Currency sensitivity analysis

Impoct on tmpact on

equity eautty

2011 2010

Currency sensitivitv test £m £m
10% Euro appreciation 3 1
10% US Dollar appreciation -} 1

Cther price risk

Other price rsk is the rsk thot the fair value of future cash flows of o financial Instrument will fluciuate because of changes In market
prices other than those arising from inferest rate fisk or currency risk These changes may be os ¢ result of features of the Individual
Instrument ifs ssuer or factors atfecting all similar financial Instruments traded in the morket

The Company controls its exposure to geographlc price risks by using Internal country credit ratings These ratings are based on
macreeconomic dota and key qualitative indicators The latter take Into account economic social and politicat environments Table
3 Indicates the Company's exposure to different egulty markets around the worcd Unit linked equity investments are excluded frorm the
table as the risk Is retained by the policyholder

Table 3 - Exposure to worldwlde equity marketls

Non profit Nonh proflt
non-unit Wwith- Man-Unit With-
Shareholder linked profits Total Shareholoer linked profts Total
01 2011 201 2011 210 2010 2010 200
£m £&m &m m m £m £m £m
UK 454 - 1,387 1,841 422 - 2199 24621
North America - - 745 745 - - 422 a22
Europe 24 - 5§15 53¢ 25 - 488 713
Japan - - 402 402 - 452 492
Asla Paclfic 30 - 566 596 26 - 448 474
Other - - 39 9 n - 144 1585
Usted equities 508 - 3,654 4162 484 - 4393 4877
Unlisted UK equities 1 - 1,011 1,102 8¢ - 1009 1098
Holdings In unit trusts 982 1 1,166 2,149 490 - 1173 1672
Total equities 1,581 1 5,831 7,413 1072 - 6875 7647
The Company holds non-unit linked property Investrnents totalling £132m (2010 £13?m) of which £132m (2010 £132m) are located In
the UK
Cradit risk

The Company s credit risk pollcy defines the overall framework for the manogement of credlt risk Significant arecs where the
Company Is expased to credlt risk are

+ The Compony hotds comporate bonds ta back part of its Insurance llabllitles Significant exposures ore maonaged by the application
and regular review of concentration limits with allowance being mode in the actuarlal valuation of the insurance licbilities for possible
defaults and

+ The Company limits its exposure to Insurance risk by ceding part of the risks it assumes to the relnsurance market To limit the sk of
reinsurer default the Company operates a credit rating policy when arranging cover ‘When selecting new reinsurance partners the
Company considers only companies which have a minimum credilt rating equivalent to A- from Standard & Poor s Exposure limits for
new and existing reinsurers are determined based on credli ratings and projected exposure Aggregate counterparty exposures are
regularny monitored at Company level

The credit profle of the Company's assets exposed to credit risk is shown In Table 4 The credit rating bands are provided by
independent rating agencies For unrated assets the Company maintains intemal ratings which are used to manage exposure to
these counterparties  Unltlinked assets have not been included as sharehaolders are not directly exposed 1o risk

The carrying amaunt of non-unit linked assets Included In the balance sheet represents the maximum credit exposure No impalment
provisions hove been made
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Table 4 - Exposure to credit risk
B8 and Unrated
AAA AA A 71} below other Total
As at 31 December 2011 Notes £m £m sm &m £m £m £m
Shareholdar
Gavernment securities 238 - - - - - 238
Other fixed rate securities 124 141 240 10} 2 - 408
Varloble rate securities - - 1 - - - 1
Total debt securlties 382 141 241 10 2 - 847
Accrued Interest 3 1 3 3 - - 10
Dertvative assets 17 - - 3 - - - 3
Cash and cash equivolents 22 a8 55 32 - - [1¢] 255
Financlal assets 453 197 279 104 2 ac L1156
Cther assets 21 - 18 - - - 16 34
453 215 279 104 2 98 1,14%
Nan profit non-unit Iinked
Other fixad rate securltles 1 1 - - - - 2
Total debt securities 1 ] - - - - 2
Derlvative cssets 14 - - - - 1 - 1
Cash and cash equivalents 21 1 3 20 - - - 24
Financial assets 2 4 20 - 1 - 27
Reinsurars share of confract liabilities 17 - 1,236 393 - - 25582 28211
Other assets 21 4 - - - - &6l 465
[} 1,240 413 - 1 27,243 28,903
With-profits
Government securifles 1,825 4 1 - B 1 1831
Qther fixed rate securtias 2,772 1,124 2,007 1,761 125 203 7,992
Varlable rote securlfies - - 19 5 - 5 29
Total debt securities 4,597 1,128 2,027 1,766 125 209 9,852
Accrued Interest 44 20 44 43 1 2 174
Loans and receivables 16¢0 - - - - - 1 1
Derlvative assets 17 - 10 155 - - - 1565
Cash and ¢ash equivalents 22 348 287 39 - - - &74
Financial assets 5,009 1,445 2,265 1,809 126 212 10 846
Relnsurers share of contract liabllities 8 - 1 - - - 12 13
Other cssets 21 - - - - - 100 100
5009 14446 2,265 1,809 126 324 10979

At the year end the Company held £62m (2010 £793m) of collateral In respect of non-unit linked derlvative assets
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Table 4 - Exposure to credit risk (continued)

28 and Unrated
AAA AA A BBB below other Total
As at 31 December 2010 MNotes £m £m £m £Em £m £m £m
Shareholder
Government secunhes 222 - - - - - 222
Other fixed rate secunties 33 23 103 &0 22 2 243
Vanable rate secuntes 7 2 2 - - - 11
Total debt securities 262 25 105 &0 22 2 476
Accrued interest 3 - 2 2 - - 7
Loans and receivables 14(ii) - & & - - - 12
Denvative assels 17 - 4 3 - - - 7
Cash and cash equivalents 22 - 44 333 - - - ze
Financial assets 285 81 449 62 22 2 881
Other assets 21 - 20 - - - 7 27
265 101 449 82 22 b 908
Non proft non-unit linked
Other fixed rate secunties - 1 - - - - 1
Tolal debt securlties - 1 - - - - 1
Cash and cash equivalents 22 2 7 19 - - - 28
Finencial assets 2 8 19 - - - 29
Reinsurers share of contract labibhes 18 - 770 859 - - 23546 25175
Other assets 21 3 - - - - 928 231
5 778 878 - - 24474 24135
With-profits
Govemment secunties 14667 5 - - - 1 1473
QOther fixed rate secunties 2803 1098 2290 1270 140 373 7974
Varable rate secunties 47 12 25 4 - 5 23
Total debt securities 4517 1115 2315 1274 140 379 9740
Accreed interest 48 19 56 29 1 4 77
Loans and recewvables 15(1) - 40 48 - - 1 a9
Denvative assots 17 - [} 49 - - 29 84
Cash and cash equivalents 22 278 299 180 - - I 758
Financial assets 4863 | 479 2 448 1303 141 414 10848
Reinsurers share of contract liabiities 8 - - 2 - - - 2
Other assets 21 - - - - - 122 122
48463 147% 2450 1303 141 536 10972
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Table 5 provides informahon regarding the camying value of financial assets which have been impared and the ageing analysis of
financial assets which are past due but not impaired Unit linked assefs have not been included as shareholders are not exposed to
the nsks from unit inked policies

Table 5§ - Ageing of financial assets that are past due but not imparred

Fnancial assets

that are past due but not Impalired

Financial
assets that
Nelther past have
due nor 0-3 3-6 & months- Cver been Carrving
1 year T vear Impalred valus
As at 31 December 2011 Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Shareholder
Govemment secunhes 238 - - - - - 238
Other fixed rate secunhes’ 408 - - - - - 508
Vanable rate secunties 2 - - - - - 2
Total debt securilies B48 - - - - - 848
Accrued interest 10 - - - - - 10
Loans and receivables 16{n) - - - - - - -
Cenvative assets 17 3 - - - - - 3
Cash equivalents 2z 131 - - - - - 131
Financiol assets 992 - - - - B $92
Other assets 21 34 - - - - - a4
1028 - - B - - 1026
Non profit non-unit linked
Ofher fixed rate secunties 2 - - - - - 2
Total debt securities 2 - - - - - 2
Denvative asseis 17 1 - - - - - 1
Cash equivalents 22 2 - - - - - 2
Financlat assets 5 - - - - - 5
Rensurers share of contract labilihes 18 28212 - - - - - 22
Other assets 21 542 105 -] 2 8 - 665
28 759 105 8 2 8 - 28882
With- profits
Govermnment secunhies 1.831 - - - - - 1383
Other fixed rate secunties 7992 - - - - - 7992
Vanable rate secunties 28 - - - - - 28
Total debt securiies 9,881 - - - - - 9351
Accrued interast 174 - - - - - 174
Leans and recevables 16{n} 1 - - - - - 1
Denvotive assets 17 164 - - - - - 154
Cash equivalents 22 422 - - - - - 822
Financlal assetls 10812 - - - - - 10812
Reinsurers share of contract lobilihes 18 12 - - - - - 12
Other assets 21 84 16 - - - - 100
10 908 14 - - - - 10924
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Table 5 - Ageing of financial assels that are past due but not imparred {continued)

RAnancial assets
that ore past due bu! net impaved

Financial
assets that
Neither past have
due nor 03 36 4 months- Over been Conving
impcred months months 1 vear 1 vear mpaired value
As at 31 December 2010 Notes £m im m £m £m £m £m
Shareholder
Govemnment secunties 222 - - - - - 222
Other fixed rate secunhes 243 - - - - - 243
Vanable rate secunties 11 - - - - - n
Total debt securities A74H - - - - - 4764
Accrued interest 7 - - - - - 7
Loans and receivables (0] 11 - - - - - T
Denvative assets 17 7 - - - - - 7
Cash equivalents 22 95 - - - - - 95
Financial assets 594 - - - - - 59&
Reinsurers’ share of contract kabilities 8 - - - - - - -
Other assels 21 27 - - - - - 27
623 - - - - - 623

Non profit non-linked

Govemment secunties - - - - - - -
Other fixed rate secunhes 1 - - - - - 1
Vanable rate secunhes' - - - - - -

Total debt securities 1 - - - - - 1
Accrued interest - - - - - - -
Loans and recevables 141y - - - - - - -
Denvative assets 17 - - - - - - -
Cash equivalents 22 2 - . . - . 2
Financial assets 3 - - - - - 3
Reinsurers share of contract habilihes 18 25175 - - - - - 251758
Other assels 21 931 - - - - - 231
26 109 - - - - - 26109
With-profits
Government secunties 1 673 - - - - - 1673
Other fixed rate secunhes 7974 - - - - - 7974
Vanable rate secunties 93 - - - - - 93
Total debt securities 9740 - - - - - 9740
Accrued interest 177 - - - - - 177
toans and recewvables 14(n} 89 B - - - - 8%
Denvative assets 17 84 - - - - - 84
Cash equivalents 22 700 - - - - - 700
Financicl assels 10790 - - - - - 10790
Reinsurers share of cantract hakilities 8 2 - - - - - 2
Other assets 21 122 - - - - - 122
10914 - - - - - 10914
Liquidity risk

The Company s iquidity nsk polcy defines the framework for the management of iquidity nsk The Company does not seek exposure
to kquidity nsk in 11s own nght but recognises that exposure to lguidity nsk can arse as a consequence of the markets in which it
operates the products that i wntes and through the execulion of investment management siralegies

The hquickty nsks to which Legal & General Assirance Society may be exposed pnmanly stem from low probability events that If not
cdequately planned for may result in unanhcipated liguidity requrements Such events may include a flu pandemic or natural disaster
leading to sgmificantly higher levels of clams than would normally be expected and extreme market conditions impacting the iming
of cash flows or the abiity to reclise Investiments at o given value wathin o specified timeframe Collateral requirements for
denvative/futures tronsachons and other types of financial instrument can also give nse to kqudity nsk if sufficient cash or suitable
afternative assets are not avalable to meet collateral calls when due
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A limited leve! of conlingent kquidity nsk 15 an accepled element of wnling contiacts of nsurance However the Company s Insurance
businesses seek to maintain sufficient iquid assets and standby faciibes 1o meet a prudent eshmate of the cash outflows that may
amse from contingent events The level of requred hguidily to be mantaned by insurance funds 1s [dentfied using techniques
including cash flow analysis for ranges of exireme scenanos and stress tests for shock events

Te ensure an appiocpnate pool of lquid assets are maintaned In Ine with a prudent estmate of cash outflows the profile of
Investment assets held to meet future Babifities from wnhing insurance business are structured to include an appropnate proportion of
cash and other readily realisable assets The requred profile s formally defined as part of asset benchmarks provided to the
investment managers with reguiar management information prowided by the investment manager on the actual holding relative 1o
the fund benchmarks The level of insurance funds heid in cash and other readily realisable assets at 31 December 2011 was £279m
{2010 £407m})

In additien te each insurance fund mantaining o pool of iquid assets the Group s reasury funclion provides formal facibities to the
Group's operating subsidianes to cover contingent iquidity reguirements ansing from more extreme events and where nvestment
assets may not be readily realisable The faciity avalable to each subsdiary 15 determined through analysis of potental shock events
and the potential hming ditferences that may anse in cash flows

Spectific iquidity nsks associated with the Company s core product ines and the nsk mitigation techniques are as follows

Prolecon Potenhal for liquidity rsk within the Company s protechon businesses may arnse should the rate of clams diverge
sgnificantly from that anticipated, typically as o consequence of an extreme event

The nsk of being unable fo settle claims as they fall due 1s actively managed with provision beng made and cash pools mantaned
wathin Investment portfslios tor a prudent estimaote of the potenhal clams that may anse from in-force business taking account of
extreme events Such provisions are vaidated usng stress tests The use of reassurance also acts to miigate ligudity the etfect of the
treaties being to Emit the Company s liabilly for the overall sums assured wiath a recovery being made from the reinsurance
counterparty for that element of the clam covered by the treaty  Whikt iming diferences can anse between the payment of claims
and resmbursement by reinsurance counterparhies the Company seeks to ensure that these are accommodated from cash pook

With-profils Exposure to liquidity nsk may anse If the profite of investment assets held to meet obligahons to with-profits policyholders ts
not aligned with the matunty profile of policies or the profile does not adequately take account of the nghts of policyholders to
exercise ophens or guarantees to specified early surender tarms or mimmum rates of return

Lguidity nsk associated with with-profits business 1s managed through the analysis of the matunty profile of the fund taking account of
projected future levels of bonus policyholders reasonable expectahons and projected early withdrawals and ensunng that an
appropnate proportion of the fund 15 held in cash or other readly realisable assefs to meat each tranche of maturhes and
antcipated earty withdrowals as they fall due Where policyholders have discretion to regurre eary payment of policy proceeds (for
example by requesling a surender value] appropnate contractyal safeguards are in place to ensure that the fund and remaining
policyholdets are not dsadvantaged should a matenal number of policyholders exercise this discretion

Unit linked business  Investment nsks associaled with unit Enked busimess including those associated wath iguidity are generally
bome by the holders of unils in these funds Ligqudity nsk specifically anses for unit holders in that cerdain asset classes in which the
funds mvest such as property in certain market conditions maoy not be readly realsable or only redlisable In a specified timeframe ot
a diminution of value Lguidity nsks associated with these asset classes are documented and communicated to customers in point of
sale product [terature Product terms & condifions also highlight that for certain product types that include asset classes that may be
diquid the Group retains the nght to defer the processing of fund withdrawal requests for up to six months should underlying assets
need to be realised 1o meet payment requests To minimise the naed to invoke these terms the funds seek to manian suficient
heldings i cash assets to meet foreseeable withdrawal activity

Annuies Potenhal for hqudity nsk anses wathin twe speafic aspects of the annuity business - i} changes n future pension
commitments and {ii) collateral requrements tor nsk hedging strategies The Company 1s not exposed to those nsks as the onnuity

business 15 reinsured to Legal and General Pensions Lmited

Please ako refer to notes 24 & 25 which disclose the expected insurance / investiment confract kability cashilows
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Operational elsk

All business monagers are requred to confirm regulardy the adequacy of conitols over operational nsks to business urut Risk and
Complance Committees [RCCs) Significant control issues which business areas identify are escalated to business unit RCCs which
oversee therr resoluhon There are o number of calegones under which operational nsk and s management across the Company can
be considered and these are outlined in the following paragraphs

Cther sk

Internal process failure

The Company s polentially exposed to the nsk of loss from failure of the intemal processes with which it transacts its business The
Company ensures the adequacy of the controls over its processes and regular reviews ara undertaken of their appropnateness and
eflectiveness

Peopie

The Company 15 potentially exposed to the nsk of lass from inappropriate actions by its staff The nsk s achvely managed by business
management and human resource {HR) functions Recrutment 1s managed centrally by HR funchons and all new recruits undergo a
formal induction programme  All employees have job descnphions setting out ther accountakilites and reporting fines and are
appraised annually in accordance with agreed performance management frameworks Employaes are provided with appropnate
franing to enable them to meet the relevant reguilatory requirements Risks relating to health and safety and other legslation are
managed through the provision of relevant training to all staff

Oulsourcing
The Company 15 potentally exposed 1o the achons or failure of suppliers contracted to provide services on an oulsourced bass The
required minmum standards of control for outsourced arangements are set out In the oulsourcing and crnticat suppler policy

Ltegal

Legal risk 15 the nsk of loss from unclear or deficient product documenitation nadequate documentation in support of matenat
contracts such as reassurance reaties the Incorrect mterpretation of changes in legisiation employment related disputes and claims
and commercial disputes with suppliers The nsks are actively managed through the Legal Risk framework which defines minmum
standards of control to be applied to minirmise the nsk of loss

Compliance

Compliance nsk within the Company relates to the nsk of non-adherence to legislative requirements regulations and internal policies
and procedures Responsibiiity for ensunng adherence to relevant legal and regulatory requirements is vested in individual business
managers

Event

Event nsk relotes to the potental for loss ansing from sigmiicant external events such as femonsm  financial cnsis mayor changes in fiscal
systems or disasters Typically such events have a low likelhood of cccurence a matenal impact! and can be difficult to prevent The
Company s nsk mihgahen focuses on minmming the business disruption and potential financial loss which may ensue from such ah
event This includes mantaining a framework or the management of major incidents the mantenance and regular testing of
detalled business techmical and location recovery plans and the provision of insurance cover for the loss of bulldings contents and
information technology systems and for the increased cost of working in the eveni of business disruption

Fravd

The Company 1s potentially exposed to the nsk of internal fraud clams-related fraud and external action by third parties The nsk of
internal fraud s managed through a number of processes including the screening of staff at recrutment segregahion of duties and
management oversight The activihes of Intemal Audit also act to counter the nsk  Clams—elated fraud 1s managed by ensunng
business processes are designed to fully vakdate claims and ensure that only bona fide claims are settled Ant-froud techruques are
regularly updated to mihgate nsks ond emerging threats The Company s approach to mihgating fraud and other dishonest acts
supporfed by promoting an open and honest culture In all dealings between employees managers and those parties with which the
Company has contact A foimal code of ethics sets out the Companys expectatons in this respect Effective and honest
communication is essenhal if malprachice s to be elfectively dealt with The Company has defined whistie blowing procedures to
enable all employees and those who work with the Company to raise matters of concern in confidence Personnel independent of
the business reporting ine act as designated whistle blowing contacts and mclude the heads of Intemal Audit and Compliance

Technology

The Company places a ligh degree of reiance on IT i iks business activites The faillure of IT systems could potentially expose the
Company o significant business disruphion and loss To mitigate this nsk standards and methodologies for developing  testing and
cperahng I systerns are maintaned Disasier recovery taciities enable IT operations to be conducted at remote locations in the event
of the loss of computer faciities ot a pnnaipal office site All records ore remotely backed up and computer suites are equipped with
alternatve power sources
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Conceniration ol risk
As part of the ongoing nsk assessment processes the Company considers the concentrabion of nsk  The Company seeks o manage
concentrations by sethng Imits around the moamum exposure to loss that it con tolerate from a senes of related events Umits set
include maxumum exposures to single ives geographic locations financial instruments and reinsurance balances

Long term Insvrance risks

Long term insurance products are structured as either participating or non-pasticipating The level of shareholders' interest in the value
of policies and ther share of the related profit or loss vanes depending vpon the contract stucture

N PR PR

Non-partcipaling business ts wntten mainly in the non profit part of the Long Term Fund (LTF) Profits accrue solely to shareholders In
addition there s some non-parhicipating business in the with-profits part of the LTF where the profits are shared between perticipating
poficyhalders and shareholders

Pratection business {individual and group)

The Company offers protechon products whuch provide mortality or morbidity benefits They may include heatth dsabifity crhical
iiness and accident benefits these addiional benefits are commonly provided as supplements 16 man kfe pobcies but can ako be
sold separately The benefit amounts would usually be speaified in the policy terms  Some sickness benefits cover the policyholder's
mortgage repayments and are linked to the prevaiing mortgage interest rates In addition to these bensfits some controcts may
guarantee premiwm rales provide guaranteed insurability benefils and offer pelicyholders conversion ophons

Ufe savings business

A range of contracts are offered in a vanety of different forms to meet customers’ long term savings cbjectives Policyholders may
choose to include a number of protection benefits within ther savings contracts Typcally any guarantees under the contract would
only apply on matunty or earlier death On certain older contracts there may be provisions guaranteeing surender benefits Savings
contracts may or may not guaiantee policyholders an mvestment return Where the return s guaranteed the Company may be
exposed to interest rate nsk with respect to the backing assets

Pensions (iIndividual ond corporate)

These are long term savings contracts through which policyholders accumulate pension benefits Some older confracts contain a
basic guaranteed benefit expressed as an amount of pension payable or a guarantead annuity option which exposes the Company
to interest rate and longevity nsk. These guarantees become more costly during perods when interest rates are low or when annutant
mortality improves taster than expected The ulhmate cost will also depend on the take-up rate of any option and the final form ot
annulty selected by tha policyholder

Ctiher options provided by these contracts include an open market option on matunty eary retrement and late retrement The
Company would generally have discretion over the terms on which these options are otfered

Key risk factors

{o) Insuronce mk

{4 Mortality

For contracts provicing death benefits higher mortality rates would lead to an increase in claims costs  For annuity confracts the
Company is exposed 1o the sk that mortality expenence is lower than assumed lower than expected mortakly would require
paymants 1o be made for longer and increase the cost of benefits provided The Company regularly reviews its mortality expenence
and industry projections of iongewity and adjusts the valuation and pncing assumptions accordingly

Tha Company 1s exposed 1o morakly nsk on protechon and annuity business For protection products the Company has entered into
reinsutance arrangerments to miigate this nsk and provide financing
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{ii} Persistency

In the early years of a poficy lopses and sumenders are likely to result In a loss to the Company as the acquisiion costs associated wath
the contract would not have been recovered from product margins  Some contracts include surender deductions to miigate this
nsk

In later penods once the acquisiiion costs have been recouped the effect of lapses and sunenders depends upon the relahonship
between the ext benefit If ony and the kability for that contract  Exit benefits are not generally guaranteed and the Company has
some discretion in determining the amoeunt of the payment As a result the effect on profit in later penods s expected to be broadly
neuiral

Following the adophon of PS0&/14in 2004 the persistency assumption for non-parhcipating protechon business allows for the expected
pattem of perssiency adjusted o incorporate a margin for adverse deviation

There s no persstency nsk exposure for annuiies n payment and these condracts do not provide a lapse or surrender option

{iii) Morbidity rates

The cost of health rekated clairns depends on boih the incidence of policyholders becoming il and the durchen over which they
remain Il Higher than expected iIncidence or duraton would increase costs over the level curently assumed in the calculation of
iabilities

{v) Expense vanances
Highet expenses and/or expense inflaton will tend to increase the amount of the reserves requred  The Company is exposed to the
nsk that its iabilihes are not sufficient to cover future expenses

{v] Geographic concentrations of nsk

Insurance nsk may be concentrated in geographic regions allenng the nsk profile of the Company The most sgnificant exposure of
this type anses for the group protection business where a single event could result in a large number of related clams To reduce the
overall exposure cument contracts include an *event fimit which caops the total lability Addtonally excess of loss remsuronce
arangements further mihgate the exposure

[v1) Emndemics

The spread of an epidemic could cause large aggregate claims across the Company s portfofic Quota share remsurance confracts
are used to monage this nsk The monagement of associated counterparty nsks from the use of reinsurance 1s set out on page xx
Depending on the nature aof an epidemic mortality expenence may lead to a reduction in the cost of claims for annuity business

(vil} Accumulaton of nsks

There s imited potenhal for single ncidents to give nse to a large number of clams across the different contract types waitten by the
Company However there are potentialy matenal correlations of insurance nsk with other types of nsk exposure These comelchons
are difficult o eshmate though they would tend to be more acute as the underlying nsk scenanos became more extreme An
example of the accumulation of nsk is the comrelaton between reinsurer creckt nsk with mortality and morkadity exposures

{b) Market nsk

Investment of the assels backing the Company labilities reflects the nature of the Eabilities betng supported For non-participating
business the strategy 1s to invest in fixed iIncome secunhes of appropnate matunly dates The ask of default on fixed interest secuntes is
managed through divemified portfolios with exposure limits for indvidual econormies sectors and counterparties

Interest rate nsk 15 reduced by managing the durotion and matunly struciure of each investment porttolio In relahion to the estmated
cash flows of the liabikities it supports A number of denvatives are held to enable the closer matching of assets and licbilites and to
mitigate further exposure 1o interest rate movements in paricular to Imit the exposure to any ophons and guarantees in contracts

In addiion the exposure to these nsks s allowed forin the actuanal valuahon of iabyittes under these contracts

Parficipating contracts

Parhcipating contracts are supported by the with-profits part of the LTF They offer policyhoiders the possibility of payment of benefits
In addihion to those guaranteed by the contract The amount and hming of the addibonal benefits {usvally called bonuses] are
contractually at the discretion of the Company

Discrehonary increases to benefits on parhepahng centracts are cllowed in one or both of annual ond final bonus form  These
bonuses are determined in accordance with the panciples outlined in the Group s PPFM for the management of the with-profits part
of the Company s LTF The pnnciples include

» The with-profits part of the Company s LTF will be manoged with the objective of ensunng that s assets are sufficient to meet s
liabiites wathout the need for addihenat capital

* With-profits policies have no expectation of any distinbutron from the wath-profits part of the Company s LTF s inhented estate The
inhented estate s the excess of assets held within the Society LTF over and above the amount required to meet fabiites Including
those which arse from the regulatory duty 1o treat customers fairty in setting discretionary benetits and

» Bonus rates will be smoothed so that some of the short teim fluctuations in the value of the iInvestments of the with-profits part of the
Company s LTF and the business resutts achieved in the wath-profits part of the UK LTF are not immediately reflected in payments under
with-profits policies
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At 30 June 2005 an assessment was made of the expected cost of guarantees and options o be paid In the tuture and funds wath the
same value to meet these costs were allocated from the capitalin the wath-profits sub-fund The value of the funds 1s regularty
assessed ond 15 reduced by the cost of guarantees and ophons pad since 1 July 2005 At each assessment point, f the value of the
funds is lower than the expected cost of guarantees and ophons 1t s possible 1o make deductions from asset shares to cover the
difference It 151ntended to lirut daduchons to no more than 0 75% each year up to a maxmum of 5% per policy

Followang the movement in the expected cost and the value of the associcted funds up te 31 December 2011, and in accordance
with the PPFM a deduction of 0 75% was made o the asset shares This followed a deducton of 0 2% made in respect of the year to
31 Decermber 2010 In the techrucal provisions allowance was akse made for future charges and deducthons inrespect of the
expected costs of meehng future guarantees and ophons net covered by the current year deduchion For policyholders who decide

to surrender o charge will generally be made in respect of the expected cost of guarantees and oplions not covered by the charge
aready taken

$ome older parhcipating controcts Include a guaranteed minimum rate of rofl up of the policyholder s fund up to the date of
retuement or matunty

The nature of the paricipating centracts written in the with-profits part of the Company s LTF is that more emphasis can be placed on
investing to maxamise tuture investment retums This results In a broader range of iInvestments betng held wathin the fund

Wwith-profits bonds

These contfracts provide aninvestment retumn to the policyholder which is determined by the atinbution of regular and final bonuses
over the duration of the confract In addition the contracts provide a death benefit typically of 101% of the value of the uruts
allocated to ithe policyholder

Pension coniracts

The Company has sold pension contracts contaning guaranteed annuity ophons which expose the Company to both interest rate
and lonaevity nsk The market consistent value of these auaranteas camed in the balance sheet s £57m (2010 £35m)

Deferred annuity confracts

The Company has wntten some defered annuily contracts which guaranteed minimum pensions These options expose the Company
to interest rate and lonaewvity risk as the cost would be expected to increase with decreasina inferest rates and impreved lonaevity
The market consistent value of these quarantees comed in the balance sheet s £185m (2010 £125m)

Endowment contracts

These contracts provide a lump sum on matunty determined by the addition of annual and final bonuses over the duration of the
confract naddilon the contracts provide a mintmum sum assured death benehit

Key risk factors

The insurance and market nsk exposures for paricipaling business are largely the same as those discussed for non-parhcipating
contracts The man ditterencesin the operation of thesa contracts are discussed below

{a] Insurance nsk - Perssiency

At early durations the nature of the persistency nsks on with-profits business is largely the same as for non-paricipating business and s
influenced manly by the ability to recover acqusiion costs from product margins At later durahons there is iess scope lor withdrawal
to result In a loss for the Company as these contracts typically provide expliat allowances for market conditions Allowance tor future
withdrawals 15 made In the assessment of paricipating contract iabilihes The Company 1s generally exposed to the nsk that future
withdrawals are lower than assumed, resutting in higher future guarantee costs

{i2) Market nsk
The financial nsk exposure for participating contracts s different from that for nen-parlicipating business Greater emphasis 15 placed
on investing to maamise future Investment retums rather than matching assets to Babidiies  This results in holding significant equity and

property Investments Lower invaestment returns increase the costs associatad with matunty and investment guarantees provided on
these contracts

These rsks are managed by maintaining capital sufficient fo cover the consequences of mismaich under a number of adverse
scenarnios In addiion different investment strategies are tollowed for assets backing policyholder asset shares ond assefs backing
other parhicipating kablliies and surplus  The former include significant equity and property holdings whilst the latter are invested
largely in fixed interest securihes  The assets held are managed so as to provide a parhial hedge o movements in fixed interest yields
and equity markets

The methodolegy used to caleulate the liabilihes for parhicipating contracts makes allowance for the possibility of adverse changes in
investment markets on a bass consistent with the market cost of hedging the guarantees provided The methodology also makes
allowance for the cost of future discretionary benefits guarantees and options

The value of future discretionary benehits depends on the return achieved on assets backing these contracts The asset mix vanas with

Investment conditions reflecting the Companys investment policy which aims to ophmise returns to policyholders over time whilst
miting capital requirements for this business
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The distribution of surplus to sharehclders depends upon the bonuses declared for the perod Typically bonus rates are set having
regord to Investment retums although the Group has some discretion setting rates and would nommnally smooth bonuses over time The
velatility of investment retums coutd Impact the fund s capltal pasition and Iis abillty to pay bonuses If future investiment conditions
were less favourable than anticipated the lower bonus levels resulting would also reduce future distributions ro shareholders

However business which Is written in the with-profits part of the LTF Is managed to be seli-suppoerting The unallocated disitle surplus
In the fund would nomally e expected to absorb the impact of these Investment risks Only In extreme scenarios where shareholders
were required to provide capltal support to the with profits part of the LTF would these risks affect equity

As pan of e 2007 LTF restructure the 1996 Sub-fund (£321m) was merged into the Shoreholder Retalned Capltal (SRC)Y As a result the
Board undertook to Inltlally maintain £500m ot assets within Soclety to support the with-profits business The omount of the commitment
teduced to £350m In 2011 and will then gradually reduce to zero over a pertod not exceeding seven years

The Company's approoch to sefting bonus tates Is designed to treat customers fally The approach Is set out In the PPFM tor the with-
peotlts part of the LTF In addition bonus declarations ore also oftected by FSA regulctions relating to Treating Customers Falnty (ICP)
which limit the discrefion cvalloble when setting bonus rates The Company's approach 16 setting bonuses and meeting the FSA s TCF
reguiations may Increose the Compony's exposure to market sk should the oblllty to cut bonuses during perods when Investrment
retums are poor be reduced

Unit linked contracts

The Company’s primary exposure to financial rsk from fhese contracts 1s the sk of volatilty In asset manogement fees due fo the
impoct of Interest rate ond market price movements on the falr value of the assets held In the linked tunds on which investment
management faes are based The Company |s alse exposed to the risk of an expense overrun shoutd the market depress tha level of
charges which could be imposed although for some contracts the Group has discretion over the level of management charges
levied

Sens/tvity anatysis

Table & shows the Impact on pre-tax profit and equity net of relnsurance under each sensitivity scenaria for the non-participating
business written In the non protlt part of the LTF

Table 6 - long term business IFRS sensitivity analysis

Impact Impact Impact  Impac?
on pre- on on pre- on
tax squity o egqulty
proftt neat of profit net of
net of 1ein- net of reln-
relnsurance surcnce glnsurgnce  suronce
2011 2011 2010 2010
£m m £ £

Sensitivity test
10% decrease In equity values (1,298) (994) asy ane
7 5% decrease In property values {101) 4) {114y 83
1% Increcse In interes: rates 28 20 23 16
1% decrease In Interest rates 59 [CR)] (&) (24)
Ciedit spread widens by 100 bps with no change In expected detautts - -
1% Increase In inflation (] (O] 35 25
Detault of largest reinsurer (494) 10 (679 (489)
5% decrease In annuitant morality [4}) [{}] (4] [4}]

 In calcuiGiing the alternative volues all other assumptions are left unchanged In practice Items of the Company's experence may
be corelatea

* The Company seeks (o actively manage its asset and liabllity position A change in market conditions may lead to changes In the
osset allocation or charging structure which may have a more or less significant impact on the value of the liobilltles The analysis
also ignores any second order effects of the assumption change including the potential Impact on the Compaony asset and llabllity
position and ony second order tax effects

» These stresses use the assets that back tha licbllitles  Any excess assets have not been stressed In thase calculations

= The sensitivity of the profit to changes In assumptions moy not be linear  They should nat be extrapolated to changes of o much
larger arder

* The chonge In Interest rate test ossumes a 100 bosls polnt change In the gross redemption yield on fixed interest securities together
with a 100 basls point change In the real yields on varlable securifles  Vatuation Interest rates are assumed to move In line with market
yields adjusied to allow for the Impact of FSA regulations

* In the sensitivity for credit spreods corporate bond ylelds have increased by 100bps glit and approved sacurlty yields unchanged
and thefe has been no adjustment to the detault assumptions

* The Inflatlon stress adopted Is a 1% pa increase In Inflation resulting In a 1% pa reduction In real yleld and no change 1o the nominal
yleld th oddition the expense Inflation rate is Increased by 1% pa

« The reinsurer stress shown ls equal to the technlcol provislons ceded to that Insurer

* The annultant mortality stress is @ 5% reduction In the mortality rates for immediate and deferred annuitants with no change 1o the
mortallty improvement rates (so for examptle a rote that wos 80% of a stondaord table would become 74% of that standard table)

« Defoult of largest relnsurer The largest relnsurer was deduced at an entlty level by mathematical reserves ceded The lorgest
reinsuref to the Company externot 1o the Group 1s Swiss Re The increqse In resarves s congstent with the relinsured reserves
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IFRS 1 Flrst-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

iy Reconcliiation of Income Statement for the year ended 3t December 2010

Legal & Generat Assurance Soclety Umited
Report and Accounts 2011

Profit
Revenue Exponses after tax
Notes Sm £m £m
As raported under UK GAAP 6,605 6175 430
Reduction In comying value of Investment
in subsidiaries {e) - 77 7
Other adjustments [{9) - 1 ay
As reported under IFRS 5805 6253 352
Affributed to equity holders of the company 352
(i) Raconciliation of the Balance Sheat as ot 31 Dacember 2010 As
reported Adjustments IFRS
UK GAAP Restated Restated
£m £m £m
Assats
Investment in subsidiares 2505 (883) 1,422
Value of In-farca non paricipating contfracts 337 {33n -
Purchased Interest In long term business 3 - 3
Defamed acquisiion costs 788 - 788
Plant and equipment 28 - 28
Investment proparty 135 1379 1514
Fnanclat Invastments 18914 22705 41,619
Assets held 1o cover linked liablitles 25934 (25934 -
Reinsuraers share of contract liatities 26,290 - 26 290
Defered tax recoverable 252 - 252
Other assets 630 507 1.227
Cash and cash equivalents 3468 1855 2,223
76 184 {618) 75 566
Equlty and liabillties
Equity holders capital 4.456 (290 4174
Technical provisions 68274 (68 274) -
Particlpating Insurance contracts 9183 9183
Particlpating Investment contracts 5104 5104
Unallocated divisible surptus 1 445 - 1.445
Value of In force non participating contracts - 337 @i
Non-particlpating Insurance conirccts 28 096 28 96
Non-particlpating Investment contracts 25891 25891
Senlof borrowings 8 - 8
Income tax liabliltles 140 - 140
Payables and other financial liabliities a72 Q 481
Ciher labllities 1.378 - 1.378
76184 (618) 75 566
(i) Analysis of adjustments to the Balance $heet as ot 31 December 2010
Total
(a) o) () ) (@) N adjustments
&m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assots
Investment In subsidiares 214 592) 77 {883)
Vatue of in-force non-participating centracts - - (337 33N
Purchased Interest In tong term business - - -
Deferred acqulsition costs . - - - -
Plant and equipment - - -
Investment property 5 - - . 1374 1379
Financial investments - - - 22705 22705
Assets held to cover linked llabilltias - - - (25934) (25934)
Relinsurers share of contract llabllities - - . - - -
Deferred tax recoverable - - -
Other assets 5 - 592 - 507
Cash aond cash equlvalents - - 1 855 1 855
- 10 214) - (77} (337) (6518)
Equlty and liablilties
Equity holgiets caplitel 1 @214 - 77} - (290)
Technical provislons - - (6B.274) (68 274)
Parficipoting insurance contracts - - 9183 @183
Parficipating investment contracts - - - 5104 5104
Unallecated divisible surplus - - - - -
Value of In force non participating contracts - . B - - {337) (337)
Non-participating Insurance confracts )] - - 28097 28094
Non-participating Investrnent contracts - - - - 25 891 25891
Senlor borrowings - B - - B - -
Income tax llabllitles - - - - - - -
Payables ond other financlal iabiities - 10 - [4)] 9
Othet iablilties - - - -
- 10 (214) [€)) (337) (618)
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IFRS 1 First-time adoption of Internahonal Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

As
reported Adjusiments fFRS
UK GAAP Reslated Restaled
£m £m £m
Assetls
Investment in subsidicnes 2480 {981} 14699
Value of in-force non-parlicipoting contracts 328 (328) -
Purchased interest in long term business 3 - 3
Detfered acquithon costs 824 - 824
Plant and equipment 27 - 27
Investment property 104 1285 13%0
Financicl investments 18 518 20 521 37037
Assets held to cover nked abifhes 23853 {23 853) -
Rennsurers share of confract kabilihes 22799 - 22799
Delered tax recoverable 399 - 399
Other assefs 493 987 1 480
Cash and cash equivalents 3% 2048 2087
70087 {320) 69 747
Equity and liabllities
Equity holders capital 4122 1 4123
Techrical provisions 42 674 (62 674) -
Parhaipating insurance contracts - 9198 2198
Parhicipating investment confracts - 5005 5005
Unallocated divisible surplus 1284 - 1284
Value of inforce non-paricipatng contracts - {328) (328}
Non-participating insuronce contracts - 24 990 24 990
Non-participating investment contracts - 23 480 23 480
Senior borrowings 1 - 1
Provisions - - -
Incorne tax fabilites 123 - 123
Payables and other financial labilhies 364 8 372
Other fiabilihes 1499 - 1 499
70 087 {320) &2 747
(v) Analysis of adjustmeants to the Bal Sheet as a} 1 January 2010
Tolal
(a) (b) (<) {d) (&) adjustments
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Investment in subsidianes - - - (981} - {981}
Value of in-force non-panicipating contracts - - - - (328) {328}
Purchased inlerest N long term business - - - - - -
Deterred acquisihan costs - - - - - -
Plant and equipment - - ~ - - -
Investment property - 2 - - 1284 1 286
Financicl investments - - - - 20 521 203521
Assetls held to cover linked fabilifies - - - - (23 853) {23 853)
Reinsurers share of controct labiliies - - - - - -
Defered tax recoverable - - - - - -
Other assets - é - 781 - 987
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 2048 2048
_ - 8 - - {328) {320)
Equity and liabllitles
Equity holders capxtal 1 - - - - i
Techncal provisions - - - - (62 674) (62 674)
Parhcipating insuronce contracts - - - - 9198 2198
Parhcipating investment confracts - - - - 5005 5005
Unallocated dvisible surplus - - - - - -
Value of nforce non-pariapating contracts - - - - {328) (328)
Non-parhcipating insurance contracts {0 - - 24 991 24 990
Non-participating investment contracts - - - - 23 480 23 480
Senior borrowings - - - - - -
Income tax liabililes - - - - - -
Payables and other financial kobilihes - 8 - - - 8
Other iabiflies - - - - - -
- ] - - {328) {320}
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(vi) Notes to the reconclliation of the Balance Sheet at 31 December 2010 at 1 January 2010 and reconciliation of Income Statement
for 2010

The UK GAAP balance sheet has been presented n a format consistent with Intemational Financial Reporbing Standards {IFRS) No
changes have been made to the previously reporied numbers for UK GAAP and the analyses of the adjustments are based on UK
GAAP as at 31 December 2010

{a) Claims equalisciion provislon

Under UK GAAP an eqgualisation provison is recognised in the indmidual accounts of general insurance compantes o reduce the
volatiity i results ansing from exceptional levels of clams in cerfan classes of business Under IFRS such provisions are not permitted
as no liahility exsts at the balance sheet date EEminaton of the clkams equalsation provision results in an increase 1n equity holders’

capital of £1 3m at 31 December 2010 {1 January 2010 £0%m) and an increase of £0 4m to profit after tax tor the year ended 3§
December 2010

(b) Accounting for leases

Under UK GAAP there 15 o requirement to spread operating lease incentives over the shorter of the lease term and the pencd to the
first rent review to market rates Under IFRS these should be recognised as a reduchon of the rental expense over the lease lerm on a
straight fine basis unless another systematic basis 1s representative of the hme pattern of the lessee's benefit from the use of the leased
asset

A secondary requirement under IFRS 1s that the land and bulldings elements of a lease of land ond buldings are conudered
separately for the purposes of lease classification, and should be accounted tor accordingly

The cumulative Impact of the above two changes results In an increase/decraase in equity holdars’ capilal of £rul at 31 Daecember
2010 {1 January 2010 Enil) and an increase/decraase of £nil to profit after fax for the year ended 31 Decermnber 2010

{c) Subsidiary valuation

Under UK GAAP the camying value of subsidianes is stated at curent value Under IFRS these are staled at cost For the purposes of the
first htme adophon of IFRS the cost 1s measured as the canying value on the date of fransihon An elmination of the subsequent
revaluaton performed under UK GAAP dunng 2010 is required this resulls in a decrease in equity holders copital of £214m at 31
December 2010 (1 tanuary 2010 £MNIl)

{d) Contingent loan presentation

Under UK GAAP loans to subsidianes thal are considered long term in hature and the repayment of which s contingent on the
emergence of surplus within the subsidiary are ncluded wathin the investment in subsidianes Under IFRS these loans are classified as a
long term loan

(&) Reduction In canying value of Investment in subsidiaries

With the change in methodology to calculate canying value of subsidianes noted in point {c} the camying values are reviewed

annually This adustment is the result of this review [see note 11}

(f) Other adjustments
A number of presentational or reclussification changes adjustments are required under IFR$
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